SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 18T FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
CIN:U74899DL1977PLC008495 Website- www . hotelmetdelhi.com
PHONE # (91 11) 4151525C  e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 47th Annuat General Meeting of the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited wili be
held through through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM’) , on Monday 30th
September, 2024 at 11.30 Am. via zoom meetings link
hitps:/fusG2web.zoom.us/i/812024721887pwd=007ASuZ2vxagzDuh3dFbWRHFwoyddkk.1 in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Generat Circular No.09/2023, 10/2022,
02/2022, No. 02/2021, 20/2020, 14/2020 and 17/2020 dated 25th September, 2023, 28th December, 2022, 5th
May, 2022, 13th January, 2021, 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 2020 and 13th April, 2020 respectively, to transact the
foliowing businesses:- '

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt
a. The Audited Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024,
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2024, together with the Report of the Auditors therecn.and in this regard, pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

(a) "RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial vear ended March
31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.”

(b) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consclidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 3%, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. To appeint a Director in place of Mr. Satya Pal Gupta (DIN-00204504} . who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Satya Pal
Gupta (DIN-00204504), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appoinied as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To ratify the appointment of auditors of the Company, and to fIX their remuneration and to pass the following
resoiution as an Ordinary Resolution thereof:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139,and other app |Cable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, pursuant to the resolution passed by members at the 45th AGM held on
14th September, 2022, subject to ratification at every AGM approved the appointmant of M/s Anil Sood &
AssaciatescChartered Accountant {firm registration nc. 004985 N) having Registered office at $-318,Greater
Kaillash-1, New Delhi-110048, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till the 50th Annual
General Meeting , be and is hereby ratified and that the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to
fix the remuneration payable to them for the financial year ending March 31, 2025."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. RE: APPOINTMENT OF MR. VIPUL GUPTA (DIN-00204638) AS AN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR QF THE
COMPANY AND FIXATION OF HIS SALARY,

To Consider and if though fit, to pass the following resoiuticn, with or without modification(s), as an SPECIAL
RESOLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of the shareholders, and in accordance with the provisions of
section 186, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the ruies made
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the
Companies act 2013, Mr. Vipu! Gupta be and is hereby re-appointed as Executive Direcior for a period of 4.5
years as per section 197, read with schedule V of the companies act, 2013 i.e. with effect from tst April
2024 to 30th September 2028 on a salary of Rs 2,25,000 lacs (per manth} with an increase of 10% every
year, with following perquisites and allowances which was approved by the Remuneration Committee in its
meeting: !




SALARY .
Basic salary Rs 2,25,000 {Rupees Two Lacs twenty five thousand only) per month from 1st April 2024 to
30th September 2028 with an increase of 10% every year, besides following perquisites and allowances:-

PERQUISITES & ALLOWANCES

in addition to the salary payable he shall be entitied to the following perquisites and allowances which will be

subject to a maximum of 100% of his annual satary.

a) House Rent allowance or Leased accommodation up to a limit Rs.75,000 per month.

b) Reimbursement of Medical expenses actually incurred for self and family, restricied fo one monih's
salary in a year or three month's saiary over a period of three year, -

¢) Free telephone facility at residence. All personal long distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

d) Use of Company's Car and driver for official work.”

“"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the
currency of his tenure as Executive Director, remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and other
allowances, shall be in accordance with the ceiling prescribed in section |l of the part Il of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification theraof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of directors be and is hereby authorized to amend and very from time
to time the remuneration (with in the prescribe limit as per the companies act 2013 and other applicable
provisions if any) during the tenure of the appointment in such manner as may be agreed to betwaen the
Board of Directors and Mr. Vipul Gupta.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. S.P.Gupta {(having DIN-00204504} andfor Mr. Kaveen Gupta (Din-
00204605) Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to Sign the varicus E- Form as may be
necessary to file with Registrar of Company NCT of Delhi and Haryana in this regard.”

RE- APPOINTMENT OF MR. SATYA PAL GUPTA (DIN-00204504) AS MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY AND FIXATION OF HIS SALARY,

To Consider and if though fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an SPECIAL
RESCLUTION.

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the approval of sharehoiders as stipulated under section 196 read with
Schedule V and, in accordance with the provisions of section 196, 197, 188, 203 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the rules made thereunder {including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act 2013 and pursuani to the Articles of
association of the company, Mr. Satya Pal Gupta (DIN-00204504) who is above 70 years be and is hereby
re-appointad as Chairman cum Managing Director w.e.f. 30th September 2024 to 30th September 2029 on a
salary of Rs 1,080,000 facs (per month) with an increase of 10% every year, with following perquisites and
allowances.”

SALARY

Basic salary 1,00,000 lacs {(Rupees one Lakh only) per month, from 30th September 2024 to 30th

September 2028 plus allowance as per the rules of the company, with an increase of 10% every year,

besides following perquisites and allowances:-

PERQUISITES & ALLOWANCES

In addition to the salary payable he shall be entitled to the following perquisites and aliowances which will be

subject to a maximum of 100% of his annual salary.

a) House Rent allowance or Leasad accommodation up to a limit Rs.50,000/- per month.

by Reimbursement of Medical expenses actually incurred for self and family, restricted to one month's
salary ir & year or three month’s salary cver a period of three year.

¢) Frese telephone facility at residence. All personal long distance calls shall be billed by the Company.

d) Use of Company’s Car and driver for official work.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT his remuneration is within limits set out in section 197, read with schedule V
of the Companies act, 2013, i.e. overall limit of 10% of net profit, calculated as per section 195 of the
Companies Act, 2013 payable to more than cne managerial person.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the
currency of his tenure as Chairman cum Managing Director, remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and
other allowances, shall be in accordance with the ceiling prescribed in section 1) of the part |l of Schedule V
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory modification thereof or any other section if any”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee theresf be and is
hereby authorized to do and execute all such acts, deeds, papers, documents, matters and things, as may
be necessary, for giving effect to the above resolution.”

“RESQLVED FURTHER THAT Board of directors be and is hereby authorized to amend and vary from time
to time the remuneration during the tenure of the appointment in such manner as may be agreed to between
the Board of Directors and Mr. Satya Pal Gupta.”

“"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vipu! Gupta(Din-00204638) andior Mr. Kaveen Gupta {Din-00204605)
Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to Sign the various E- Form as may be necessary to
file with Registrar of Company NCT of Delhi and Haryana in this regard.”

To Consider and Approve Conversion of Company into Private Limited Company:

To Consider and if thought fit | 1o pass with or without modification(s) if any, the following resolution as a
Special Resoiution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 13 and 14 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, and other applicable Rules as applicable if any and in pursuance of the General
Circular issued by the MCA and subject to, permission or sanctions by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of
Delhi and Haryana if required and such other appropriate authorities, as may be required and subject to the
approval of the Regional Girector, Northern Region, consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to convert the company from a "Public Limited" to a "Private Limited” and consequently the
name of the company will be changed from "SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED" to "SUNAIR HOTELS PRIVATE
LIMITED" by inserting the word "Private” before the word "Limited”. "The same would be as per the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, since the Articles of Association ¢of the company does not put any
~ restriction and conditions on conversion of the company from a public limited to a private limited company
the same will be governed by the provisions applicable to a Private company as per the Companies Act,
2313 w.e.f. the date of receipt of the necessary amended Certificate of Incorporation after name change and
receipt of approval and completion of all the formalities™.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the company be and are hereby severally and /or jointly
authorised to sign and execute all such applications, deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be
required on behalf of the company and to appoint authorised representative to appear for and to present the
company bhefcre the Regional Director (Northern Region) ROC Dethi & Haryana, if reguired, and to do all
such act, deed and things which are necessary and incidental to give effect to the above mentioned
resclution "

Alteration of Name Clause contained in the Memorandum of Association

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without medification the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 13 and other applicable Rules and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment
thereof) and the rules framed thereunder the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for
substituting the Clause | of the Memorandum ¢f Association of the Company with the followmg clause: “The
Name of the Company is 'SUNAIR HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED".

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the company be and are hereby severally and /for jointly
authorised to sign and execute all such applications, deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be
raquired on behalf of the company and to appoint authorised representative to appear for and to present the
company before the Hon'ble Regicnal Director (Northern Regicn) / ROC Delhi & Haryana, if required, and to
¢o all such act, deed and things which are necessary and incidenial to give effect to the above mentioned
resclution "

Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013
and conversion to a Private Limited Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without madification the following resolution as a Special
Resolution: A




"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Saction 14 and other applicable provisions and rules ,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"} read with the Companies (Incorporation} Rules, 2014 including
any statutory madifications or re-enactment therecf from time to time, and subject to other approval
permission or sanctions by the Registrar of Companias, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and such other
appropriate authorities the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered to be in
conformity with the provisions of the Act relating to a private limited company and thereby inserting the
restrictive clause as per Section 2(63) of the Act.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new set of Articles of Association pursuant to the Act primarily based on
the Form of Table F of Schedule | under the Act, be and is hereby approved and adopted as new setf of
Articies of Association in the place of existing Articles of Association of the Company.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the company be and are hereby severally and /or jointly
authorised to sign and execute all such applications, deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be
required on behalf of the company and to appoint authorised representative to appear for and to present the
company before the Hor'ble Regional Director (Northern Region)/ ROC Delhi & Haryana, i required, and to
do afl such act, deed and things which are necessary and incidental to give effect to the above mentioned
resalution .

Alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and
conversion to a Private Limited Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Section 13 and other applicable provisions and rules |
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 including
any statutory modifications or re-enaciment thereof from time to time, and subject to other approval,
permission or sanctions by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Deihi and Haryana and such cther
appropriate authorities the Memorandum of Asscciation of the Company be and is hereby altered to be in
conformity with the provisions of the Act relating to a private limited company and thereby inserting the
restrictive clause as per Section 2(68) of the Act."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT attered Memorandum of Association pursuant to the Act, be and is Ahereby
approved and adopted in the place of existing Memorandum of Association of the Company.”

"RESOQLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the company be and are hereby severally and /or jointly
authorised to sign and execute all such applications, deeds, documents, instruments and writings as may be
required on behalf of the company and to appoint authorised representative to appear for and to present the
company before the Hon'ble Regional Director (Northern Region)/ ROC Delhi & Haryana, if required, and to
do ali such act, deed and things which are necessary and incidental ¢ give effect to the above mentioned
resolution "

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Sl

(Nefﬁé Rajput)

Piace . New Delhi Company Secretary
Dated : 03/09/2024 (Membership No.-A-26118)

NOTES ;-
1.

In view of the continuing Covid-1¢ pandemic, the Ministry of Ceorporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated 25th
September, 2023, 28th December, 2022, May 5th, 2022, December 14th, 2021, December 8th, 2021 January 13th,
2021, May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as "MCA
Circulars™) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (*AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”),
and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being heid through VC / OAVM.
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Pursuant to the provisions af the Act, a Member entiied to attend and vote at the AGM is entitted to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with,
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Corporate members intending to authorize their represeniatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a scanned
certified copy of the hoard resclution {pdfijpeg format) authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf
at the Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent by email through its registered email address to
sunairhotels@gmail.com.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to
write to the Company on or before AGM through email on sunairhotels@gmait.com.

In compliance with the afcresaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent
through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are found by the Company/directors. Although the
physical copies of the financial statements for the financial year 31.03.2024 is also being sent by courier o ali the
members specifying the detail of scheduled AGM by VC / OAVM. Members may note that ihe notice and Annual Report
2023-24 will also be available on the Company's website www hotelmetdelhi.com. Further the link will be available on
the website of the company at www . hotelmetdethi.com shertly and also will be sent on the email ids/addresses of the
shareholders whose addresses are available,

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out materiai facts concerning the business under
ltem Nos. 4,8,6.7,8 and 9 of the nolice are annexed with the notice along with the relevent details.

Members attending the AGM through VC / CAVM shali be counted for the purpoese of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act. '

Since the AGM will be held through VG / CAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.
In case of joint holder attending the Meeting, whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names wilt be
entitied to vole.

To provide the fair chance to participate in the AGM by VC / OAVM, Members are advised te notify the Company their
email ids / change in email ids and Phone No's and any change in address to the company as soon as possible.

The Meeting shall be deemed to be held at the Registered office of the Company at A-7, 1st Floor, Geetanjali Enclave,
New Delhi-110017.

Members can send their requests, if any, to sunairhotels@gmail.com.

Voting if demanded by the members will be online at the email address of the company during the meeting.

Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shali open 15 minutes before the fime scheduled for the AGM.

Further shareholders will be required to switch on the video facility and use internet connection with a good speed to
aveid any disturbance during the Meeting.

Al grievances connecied with the facility for voling during the mesting means may be addressed to Sunair Hotels
Limited and send an email to sunairhotels@gmail.com and further can cali on 011-41515250.0ther details will be
posted on www._hotelmetdelhi.com.

Shareholders can update their mobile numbers and e-mail iDs (which may be used for sending future
communication(s)) by writing to sunairhotels@gmail.com.




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 1ST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
CIN;U74899DL1977PLC008485 Website- www hotelmetdelhi.com
PHONE # (81 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The following explanatory statements, as required by section 102 of the Compantes Act, 2013, set out all material
facts relating to the business under ftem Nos. 4.5, 6, 7, 8, 9 mentioned in the accompanying Notice.

ltem No- 4 .

Mr. Vipul Gupta was reappointed as Executive Director for the Period of 3 years i.e. with effect from 01/04/2021 to
31/03/2024 with the salary of Rs. 2,56,000/- p.m. with annual increment of 10% p.a | as per the resolution passed in
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27.02.2021 His entitled salary was Rs. 3.02,500/- p.m as on
31.03.2023 and in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 01.12.2023 his salary was increased from Rs.
3,02,500/- to Rs. 3,50,000/- per month with effect from 1st Aprit , 2023 for the remaining tenure up to 31/03/2024,
besides allowances and perquisites as set out in the resolution .\ The Beoard of Directors of the Company, based on
the performance, evaluation and recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has considered
that the experience, qualification and contribution of Mr. Vipul Gupta, basides his continued association with the
company has proved significantly beneficial for the Company. Further, he has been carrying out various
responsibilities of the company as the Executive Director in a fair and transparent manner by adopting the highest
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. He has enlightened the path of the company.
in consonance with the Board of Directors and other Senior Management . The honesty, integrity and sound judgment
and performance are key criteria of his performance which have helpad in builkding a good reputation of the
Company. tHe has been associated with the company since the year 1993 and has been continuously devoting his
time for the betterment of the business of the company. In view of the same, his efforts and his continued association
with the company, as his term of Appointment expired on 31st March, 2024 . The Board of Directors in its Meeting
held on 28/02/2024 proposed his appointment as executive Director for a period of 4.5 years as per section 197, read
with schedule V of the companies act, 2013 or other applicable section if any i.e. with sffect from 1st April 2024 to
30th September 2028, on the remuneration given in the body of resolution,

His remuneratior: is within limits set out according to the provisicns of the Companies act 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act
2013

The Director recommended the passing of resolution given in item no. 4 of the Notice as a Special Resaclution.

The above may alsc be treated as an absiract of the main ferms and conditions of the appoiniment of Mr. Vipul
Gupta as an executive Director as per Companies Act 2013.

Mr. Vipul Gupta, Mr. S.P.Gupta, and Mr. Kaveen Gupta are interested in passing of the resolution.

ftem No- 5

Mr. Satya Pal Gupta was appointed as Chairman cum Managing Director for a period of 3 year i.e. with effect from
1 April 2017 to 31* March 2022. His term of appointment expired on 31% March 2022 after that approval for his Re
appointment taken via Ordinary Resolution from the sharehclders at the Annual General Meeting of the company
held on 14.09.2022 As Mr. Satya Pal Gupta had attended age of 70 years, Company subsequently fied the
application as stipulated and provided under section 196 read with Schedule V of the Companies act 2013 and the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof} read with scheduie- V of the
Companies act 2013 with Central Government for taking approval for his Re appointment, his appoitment was not
acceded by Central Government. Mr. S.P. Gupta is deeply involved in the day to day affairs of the Company and is
heart and soul of the company and is instrumental in bringing up the project of hotel under the company and now the
Board of Directors based on the performance, evaluation and recommendation of the Noemination and Remuneration
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Committee, has considered that the experience, qualification and contribution of Mr Satya Pal Gupta, besides his
continued association with the company has proved significantly beneficial for the Company.Board in its Meeting heid
on 02/09/2024 proposed his Reappointment as Chairman cum Managing Director of the Company for a period of
year w.e.f 30th September 2024 tc 30th September 2029, subject to the approval of shareholders via special
resolution and as stipulated under section 196 read with Schedule V | and in accordance with the provisions of
section 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the rules made
thereunder (inciuding any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedute- V of the Companies act
2013 and pursuant fo the Articles of association of the company on a salary, perquisites and other allowances as
given in the resolution.

His remuneration is within limits set out according to the provisions of the (fompanies act 2013 and the rules made
thereunder {including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with schedule- V of the Companies act
2013,

The director recommended the passing of resolution given in item no. 5 of the Notice as a Special Resclution.

The above may aiso be treated as an abstract of the main terms and conditions of the appointment of Mr. Satya Pal
Gupta as Chairman cum Managing Director pursuant to section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

No other director except Mr. Satya Pal Gupta, Mr. Kaveen Gupta and Mr. Vipul Gupta, are interested in passing of
the resclution.

ftem No-6

The Company was incorparated as a Public Limited Company in 1977. As the company has only 17 sharehelder at
this point of time and company has no intention to go public any time in near future, the Board of Directors of your
company have considered it fit and appropriate to convert your Company into a Private Limited Company not only to
avoid unnecessary formalities besides obtaining privileges which are available to a private fimited company under the
law and it will also helps the Board of Directors of your company to carry out its affairs more efficiently. As has
been advised, the number of legal compiiances will get reduced and will benefit the company in more economical
manner. Further, it is assured by the Board of Directors that the corporate governance will remain at the same level
and there will be no slackness in the diligence process which the company has been religiously following over the
years.

It is further placed on record that since no foan taken by the company is outstanding in any manner as on date,
therefare there is no requirement to obtain any No Gbjection Certificate from any authority for the purpose. Further
SUN AERO LTD, a wholly owned subsidiary company of your company will also be converted into a private limited
company simultaneously to afign level of its affairs with the holding company. The company has been managed
professionally ever since commencement of its business operations and the performance of the company has been
fremendous despite several hurdles, the company has faced over the years. Despite the impact of the Pandemic on
the business operations globally on hospitality industry and other prevalent factars, the performance has been at par
or a level better when compared with the similar hote! properties in the area around, The management has always
tried to maximize the wealth of its shareholders and this step is another step in that direction by converting the
company from the limited to a private company. The issue of rights and obligations of the company would remain as
per the provisions of the Act, applicable to any private limited company from time to time and all existing obligations
of the financial nature as applicable on the company would remain the same in the private limited structure of the
company as well as the rights of the shareholders would be fully protectad.

The Board has approved the above proposal in its meeting held on 02/09/2024. As per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the members of the Company by way of a special resolution is required for
conversion of the Company to a private limited company. The Members are requested to note that the conversion to
a Private Limited Company is subject o the approval granted by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and
Haryana and the Regional Director, Northern Region and such other regulatory authorities, as may be required.

The Directors of your company recommend the adoption of the said Special Resoiution as set cut in item No.8 of the
notice in the best interest of the Company. All the material documents and corrected copies of the Memcrandum &
Articles of Association of the Company are available for inspection during the business hours from 11,00 am till 12.30
pm at the registered office of the company tilf the date of this Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are interested in the Resolution at ltem No. 6 of the
accompanying Notice. N




Item No- 7

The conversion of the Company to a private fimited company will result in amending the name clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company since the name of the Company will change from "SUNAIR HOTELS
LIMITED" to "SUNAIR HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED". In terms of the Sections 13 and 14 and relevant rules of the
Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the members by way of a special resclution is required for amendment of the
Memorandum of Assoclation of the Company. The Beard of Directors have approved the amendment at its meeting
held on 02/09/2024. The Members are requested to note that the amendment is subject to the approval granted by
the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Harvana and Reaional Director. Nerthern Region and such other

The Directors of your company recommend the adoption of the said Special Resclution as set out in ltem No.7 of the
nctice in the best interest of the Company and s shareholders. The detailed reasons for the conversicns of the
company into a private limited company has been given above and this is a conseguent resolutions for the above and
for the same reason the explanatory statements as given for the resclution no. 1 shall also be applicable as wall. All
the material documents and corrected copies of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company are
available for inspection during the prescribed business hours from 11.00 am till 12.30 pm at the registered office of
the company till the date of this Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are interested in the Resolution at ftem Na. 7 of the
accompanying Notice.

ltem No-8

The Articles of Association ("A0A") of the Company is presently in force since its incorporation of the Company ie.
year 1977, The existing Articles of Assaociation are in line with the erstwhile Companies Act 1886, which are thus no
longer in full conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 ('New Act). The New Act is now largely in force and
substantive sections of the Act which deal with the general working of companies stand notified. With the coming into
force of the New Act, several articles of the existing Articles of Association of the Company require alteration /
deletions. Given this position, i is considered expedient to wholly replace the existing Articles of Association by a
new set of Articles. The conversion of the Company to a private fimited company will result in amending the Articles
and instituting restricting clause applicable to a private limited company as per Section 2(68) of the Companies Act,
2013. However, it is expedient to adopt new set of Articles of Association (primarily based on Table F set out under
the Companies Act, 2013), in place of existing Articles of Association of the Company instead of amending the
Articles of Assaciation by alteration/incorporation of provisions of the Companies Act, 20132 applicable to a private
fimited company. Hence the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 02/09/2024 decided to adopt new set of Articles
in place of existing Articles of Association of the Company and seek sharehoiders’ approval for the same. in terms of
section 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the members by way of special resojution is reguired
for adoption of new set of Articles of Asscciation of the Company. The Members are requested to note that the
amendment is subject to the approval granted by the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and such
other reguiatory authorities, as may be required.

The Directors of your company recommend the adoption of the said Special Resolution as set out in ltem No.8 of the
nctice in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The detailed reasons for the conversions of the
company into private limited company has been given above and this is a consequent resoiution for the above and
for the same reason as per the explanatory staterent given in the resolution no. 6 and will aiso be appiicable here.
All the materiai documents and corrected copies of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company are
availabie for inspection during the prescribed business hours from 11.00 am till 12.30 pm at the registered office of
the company till the date of this Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are interested in the Resolution at ltiem No. 8 of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No-2

The Memorandum of Association ("MoA”"} of the Company is presently in force since its incorporation of the
Company ie. year 1977. The existing Memaorandum of Association are in line with the erstwhile Companies Act
1956, which are thus no longer in full conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 {New Act’). The New Act is now
largety in force and substantive sections of the Act which deal with the general working of companies stand notified.
The main objects of the company will remain same only ancillary and other objects are to be amended as per

companies act 2013. _ o
The company is not amending the memorandum of association on conversion and only instituting restricting clause

s
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applicable to a private limited company as per Section 2(68) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on 02/09/2024 decided to alter existing Memorandum of Association of the Company
and seek shareholders' approval for the same. In terms of section 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013. the consent
of the members by way of special resolution is required for alteration of existing Memorandum of Association of the
Company. The Members are requested to nete that the alteration is subject to the approval granted by the Registrar
of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana and such cther reguiatory authorities, as may be required.

The Directors of your company recommend the adoption of the said Special Resolution as set out in Item No.8 of the
notice in the best interest of the Company and its sharehclders. The detailed reasons for the conversions of the
company into private limited company has been given above and this is a consequent resolution for the above and
for the same reason as per the explanatery statement given in the resoiution ne. 8 and will also be applicable here.
All the material documents and corrected copies of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company are
available for inspection during the prescribed business hours from 11.00 am il 12.30 pm at the registered office of
the company till the date of this Annual General Meeting

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are inierested in the Resolution at Item No. 9 of the
accompanying Notice.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

IS f ]

Place : New Delhi (Neha Rajput)
Dated : 03/09/2024 Company Secretary

(Membership No.-A-26116)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 15T FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
CIN:U74899DL1977PLCOCE495 Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Details of Directors Seeking Appointment/ Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting

ITEM NO: 2
Name of Director Mr. Vipul Gupta Mr. 8.P.Gupta
PAN no. AACPGB452E AACPGB453F
Date of Birth 27121988 17/0711933
Date of Appoiniment 10/09/1993 3 20/03/1880
Quatification MBA (USA) Deploma in Business Management
Experience in functional area Having experience about 30 years Having experience about 82 years
Director‘ ii"l other Company Excluding Sunair Sun Aero Limitad Sun Aero Limited
Hotels Limited Columbia Trading Co. Ltd. H J Consuitants Pyt Ltd.
Pushpanjall Trexim (P) Ltd. Columbia Trading Co. Lid.
H.J. Consultants Pvt. Ltd. Pushpanjali Trexim (P) Lid,
Membership in various committees In other Columbia Trading Co. Limited- Audit
Board excluding Sunair Hotels Limited Nil Committee
Chairmanship in the Committees of other Boards None None
No. of shares held in the Company 2,891,000 8,258,790
Detail of Remuneration tast Drawn Rs 2,25 000/- P.m. E Rs. 1.50,000/- P.m.
Mr. 3.P.Gupta — Father Mr. Vipul Gupta — Son
Relationship_with other Directors and KMP Mr. Kaveer Gupta ~Brother Mr. Kaveen Gupta- son
Number of Board Meeting Attended during the year [§ 6




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off.:- A-7, 1ST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI- 110 017
CIN:U74839DL1877PLC0O08495 Website- www.hotelmetdelhi com
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members

The Directors of your company have pleasure in presenting the 47th Annual Report of the Company and s financial accounts for
the year ended on 31st March, 2024,

.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company's financial performance for the year under review along with previous years figures are given hereunder

CURRENT PREVIOUS

YEAR (Rs.} YEAR (Rs.)

3110312024 31/03/2023
Net Sales / Income from;:
a) Business Operations 661,407 492 827 426,535
b) Qther Income 25,752,972 31,649 838
Total Income 687.160.464 559076373
Profit/ (Loss) before interest & Depreciation 110484 383 171,003,658
Less: Finance cost including Bank Charges 61,632 58,209
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation 110,422,751 170,944,359
Less: Depreciation 33,911,803 34,775,791
Profit / (Loss) after Depreciation but before Tax 76,510,948 136,168,558
Less: Tax (Saving)/Expense

a) Current Income-tax 8,387,778 17,985,165

b) Earlier year(s) Adjustment of Income-tax 5,805,425 -

¢) Deferred Tax (314,363) 18,370,268
Net Profit/ {Loss) after Tax 62,632,109 98813135
Less:  Appropriations:

a) Dividend (including Interim, if any, and Final) - -
Net Profit/ {l.oss) after Dividend & Tax 62,632,108 99,813,135
Amount transferred te General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 62,632,109 99813135
Earning per share (Basic) 1.568 2.51
Earning per share (Diluted) 1.58 2.51

2. DIVIDENDS
With a view to conserve funds, the Directers do not recommaend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24

3. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid by the
Company .

4. RESERVES
The Board of Directors do not propose any amousnt to be carried to any reserve.

5, STATE OF CONPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK
The Company is engaged in the business of Hetel Running and Financial / Portfolio Management.

The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

Revenue from operations for the year stood at Rs. 66.14 crores twrnover as compared to Rs.62.74 Crores for the previous
year. Turnover has increased compared with previous year.But Profit before tax for the year has reduced to Rs 7.65 Crere as
compared to Rs.13.61 Crore in the previous year. Further Eaming per Equity Share (EPS) of the Company has also
dacreasad during the period under review to Rs. 1.58/- as compared to Rs. 2.51 for the previous year. According to the World
GDP Ranking 2024 list, India is the fifth fargest economy in the world. This means India's economic growth next fiscal year will
be the fastest among major economies company is hopefull\f\or the better performance in the upcompanig years . Further the




upcoming years, nsing consumption and mvestments, both domestc and foreign, will contribute to the natien’'s growth and
may aiso help India to rank higher in the World GDP Ranking list. this will also beneficial for the company in long run. The
baseline forecast is for the World economy 1o continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 and 2025. A slight accsleration for
advanced economies where growth is expected to rise from 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percant in 2025.

The Indian hospitality sector is expected to witness high growth over the long term. Domestic travel, high disposable income
and the adverd of better locations are expected to drive this growth. The travel market in india is projected to reach US$ 125
billion by FY 2027, International tourist arrivals are expected to reach 30.5 million by 2028. The indian tourism and hospitality
industry has emerged as one of the key drivers of growth among the services sactor in India. Tourism in India has significant
potential considering the rich cultural and historical heritage, variety in ecology, terrains and piaces of natural beauty spread
acress the country. Another factor is India’s emergence as a destination o avail world class medical facilities at competitive
cost. Tourism is also a potentially large employment generator besides being a significant sourse of foreign exchange for the
country. The deepening penetration of internet usage and smart phones in india has led o increased booking of hotels
through online portals and appfications in recent fimes. This is also expected to significantly enlarge the size of the Indian
ontine hotet industry in the coming years. Travel and tourism are two of the largest industries in india, with a total contribution
of about US$ 178 hillion to the country's GDP. The hotel industry in india is significantly under-served. Various poiicies are
being introduced to promote the tourism and hospitality sectors to meet the demand of new tourists in the coming years.
According to World Travel and Tourism Councit (WTTC), India is ranked 10th among 185 countries in terms of travel &
tourism’s total contribution to GDP in 2019. In India, the industry's direct contribution to the GDP is expected to record an
annual growth rate of 7-9% between 2019 and 2030. The Indian airline travel market was estimated at USS$ 20 billion and is
nrojected to double in size by FYZ27 due to improving airport infrastructure and growing access to passports. The Indian hotel
market including domestic, inbound and outbound is expected to reach USH 52 biflion by FY27, driven by the surging demand
from travelers and sustained efforts of travel agents to boost the market. By 2028, internaticnal tourist arrivals are expacted 1o
reach 30.5 billion and generate revenue over US$ 59 billion, Mowever, domestic tourists are expected to drive the growth,
post pandemic. The directors appreciated the efforts of the company. Company is hopeful of betier resulis in the coming
years as well. And company is hopeful that under changed sceneric it would be able to have better perforamnce in coming
years

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which have occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report.Athough the
Company had taken approval from shareholder in the extraordinary general meeting dated 01/12/2023 to convert the
cempany from a "Public Limited" to a "Private Limited” , was kept on hold, so now again the company is initiate the
CONVErsion process.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Appilications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Lid (a registered sharehoider of the Company) Ws 34 of the Arbitration
and Reconciliation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are pending for disposat since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble
Delhi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement
of the said Award filed by VLS Finance Ltd in the Hon'ble Delht High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has
been given by VLS Finance L{d not to press the execution till the original cross petition are decided. The earlier such petition
filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on 16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the
Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated
11/03/1985 with due interest. However, as per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable
particularly when the Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of
VLS Finance Ltd and decided in favour of the Company.

SFIO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before the Hon'ble NCLT
against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIQ has aiso filed a complaint on the same
subject as is before the Hon'ble NCLT in the court of the learned ASJ {Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as
on this daie,

In the FIRs fited by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Lid. against the Company and others, charges have been
framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are still pending at different siages.
V2.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technalogy absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies {Accounis) Ruies, 2014 is
furnished in 'Annexure-A’ attached to this report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY QF THE
COMPANY

The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the Company's existence are
quite minimal.

RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES .

The Company is coveraed under the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the company has spent the funds through “Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society * which have
used the fund for Charitable Diagnositic Services and working for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically
backward groups. Disclosures as per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 has been
given by way of an Annexure to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE LINDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

The Company has not given any loans to any persen of other bedy corporate or given any guarantee in connection with any
loan to any body Corporate or person or acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other
body corporate during the financial year 2023-2024 covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Acl, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no fresh contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act.
2013 during the year under review,

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS
MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. The provisions relating to
submission of Secretarial Audit Repart are not applicable fo the Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPQINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DiSCHARGE
OF THEIR DUTIES

A) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personne!

a) At the ensuing Annual General Meeting Mr. Satya Pal Gupta (DIN-00204504) , Diractor of the Comapny retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Mr. Satya Pal Gupta shall continue to hoid his office of Director, and the
reappeointment as such director shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his office of Director detail regarding Mr. Satya
Pai Gupta are Annexed with the Notice Calling AGM,.

p) The term of Appointment of Mr. Vipui Gupta {DIN-00204638) was expired on 31st March, 2024, Now his Re-appointment
is proposed as executive Director for a period of 4.5 years i.e. with effect from 1st April 2024 to 30th september 2028.

¢} The term of Appointment of Mr. Satya Pal Gupta (DIN-00204504) was expired on 31st March, 2022, Now his Re-
appointment is proposed as executive Director for a period of 5 years L.e. with effect from 30th September 2024 to 30th
September 2028,

C) Declaration by an Independent Director{s) and re- appointment, if any _

Mr.Ramesh Kumar Choubey (Din- 10545097) was appointed as an Additionat Director o fill the post of Independent Director
on 02.05.2024, but due 1o some personal reason he resigned from the aforesaid position w.e.f 10.08.2024. As at present
there are no independent Directors in the company. Company is searching for the suitable person to join as Independent
Directeor in the Company,

D) Formal Annual Evaluation
The Board of Directers has carried out an annual evaluation of the performance of Board Committees and Company
Secratary, CFQ of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The performance of the Commitiees was
evaiuated by the Board on the basis of the criteria such as the coordination and effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc.
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Performance of the Independent Directors was not evaluated by the Board as there are no indipendent director in the
company during the year under review .Further the Company is searching for the suitable persons to join as Independent
Director in the Company to fuifill the requirement.

The performance of the entire Board was evaluated on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition, fulfillment of
responsibility, effectiveness of Board processes, functioning, etc. The performance of the Executive Directors (individuaily)
including Chairman and Non-executive Directors {individually), was evaluated by the Directors of the Company on the basis
of the criteria such as Presence in the meetings, Strategic planning, Compliance. completion of duties, etc.

Web Link of Annual Return.:-

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-§ had been done away with pursuant to amendment in Section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Managemen! and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e i
28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Retwn is now
required to be placed on the website of the Company. if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. The Annual Return for the Financial Year 2023-24 is available
on web link httos:/fwww hotelmetdelhi.com/Draft_annual_returnZ4. pdf

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-S had been done away with pursuant to amendment in Section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 well
28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Arnual Return is now
required to be placed on the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. The Annuat Return for the Financial Year 2023-24 is available
on web link https:/Aww. hotelmetdelhi.com/Draft_annual_return24.pdf

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
The meeting of the Board of Directors were held six (8) times18/05/2023, 02/09/2G23, 02/09/2023, 31/10/2023, 14/12/2023,
and 28/02/2024 during the financial year 01/04/2023 to 31/G3/2024.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors confirm as under:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as o give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the company for that period;

¢} The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) The Direclors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

@) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(58) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down
internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

fy The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSQOCIATE COMPANIES
Statement about the subsidiary company, Mfs Sun Aero Limited has been enclosed with the Directors Report.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE
COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 21st March 2024 together with Reparts of Directors and Auditors
thereon of its, a wholly owned Subsidiary Company, together with the statement as required under Section 129 of the
Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of the Company's subsidiary in form
AQC-1is attached herewith. No effect in the books of account of the Company has been taken for the profit of the Subsidiary
Company.

DEPQOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act, 2013 during the year
under review. Although the company has filed the Return of deposit form (Annual) pursuant to the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Satya Pal Gupta {DIN-0204504) , Director of the Comapny retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment, hut it shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his office of Director as he is going fo re -appainted as an
Chairman Cum Managing Director of the Company at the 47th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2024 Further the term of
Appointment of Mr. Vipul Gupla (DIN-00204638} expired on 31st March, 2024. Now his Re-appointment is proposed as
executive Director for a period of 4.5 years Le. with effect from 1st April 2024 to 30th september 2028. Further the post of
Independent Director is vacant after resignation of Mr.Ramesh Kumar Choubey (Din- 105845097) who resigned on
10.08.2024 and the Company is searching for the suitable person to join as independent Director in the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Anil Sood & Associates Chartered Accountant {firm registration no. 004985N) New Delhi, the Statutory Auditor of the
Company were appointed as the Auditors of the Company at the 45th Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 14th
September, 2022 pursuant to section 139 and 142 and otner applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013, and the
Rules made hereunder, as amended from time to time, for period of five years till the conclusion of the 50th Annual General
Meeting , subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annuat General Mesting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant fo the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 (corresponding Section 292A of the Companies Act,
1958), the Audit Commitiee meeting were held four (4} times during the vear on 18/05/2023, 02/09/2023, 31/10/2023 and
28/02/2024 which were attended by all the Committee members. The Committee reviewed all the financial statements for the
year ended 31st March 2024. During the Financial Year 31st March 2024 as the post of Independent Director was vacated
during the pericd under review Audit committee had three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta, Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr.
Kaveen Gupta who attended the aforesaid meetings. Provisions Related with the Vigil Mechanism is not applicable on
Company.

SHARES

a) DEFFERENTIAL RIGHTS
The Company has not issued any share with differential rights, as provided in rule 4 (4) of Companies {Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year,

© ) SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. The Company has not issued any
sweat equity shares as provided in rule 8 (13) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the year.

¢) BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any share related with any scheme where the voting rights are not exercised directly by the
employees, as provided in rule 16 (4) of Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Opticns as provided in rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 during the financial year.

Extra Ordinary General Meeting
There is one Extraordinary General Meeting was held on 01/12/2023 during the financial year under raview.

AUDITORS' REPORT
The Directors are of the view that the notes appended to the accounts and referred to by the auditors in their report are self-
explanatory and do not require any elucidation.

Share Transfer Committee

Share Transfer Committee meeting was held one (1} times during the year on 02/09/2023. which weare allended by all the
Committee members. As the post of Independent Director was vacant during the period under review CSR committee had
three mambars which includes Mr. S.P.Gupta, Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended the aforesaid meetings.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The poticy formulated by nomination and remuneration committee is enclosed, Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee
meeting were held two (2) times during the year on 31/10/2023 and 28/02/2024 which were attended by ail the Committee
members.During the Financial Year 31st March 2024 as the post of Independent Director was vacated during the period
under review committes had three members which includes Mr, S.P.Gupta, Mr.Vipui Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who
attended the aforesaid meetings. N




31 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR}

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting was held cne (1) times during the year on 28/02/2024, which were
attended by all the Committee members. As the post of Independent Director was vacant during the period under review CSR
committee had three members which includes Mr. S.P.Gupia, Mr.Vipul Gupta and Mr. Kaveen Gupta who attended the
aforesaid meetings.

32 MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 are not applicable on Company. Although the relevent
details are available in Auitor report. -

33 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
Not Applicable.

34  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.

35 MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

36 SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
Company promote the positive workplace environment for everyone, free from harassment of any nature. And no complaint
was received by the Company from any women employee during the year 2023-2024.

37 COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICSI
Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard issued by ICSI.

38  INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Adequate Internal Financial Cortrot system and checks are in place commansurate with the size of the company and nature
of its business.

38 DBETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE
During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported to the audit committee, under section 143(12) of the
companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the company by its officers or employees, the detail of which
would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

40 Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code (IBC), 2016
there is no proceeding which is pending under the insolvency and Bankruptcy Code {IBC), 2016 during the financial yearunder
review,

41 Details of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Setflement and Valuation while availing Loan from
During the year under review there has been no one time setflement of lLoans taken from Banks and Financial institutions.

42  ACHKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers. business associates, consuitanis, various Government
Authorities, employees and sharehclders for their continued support extended to your Company's activities during the vear
under raview,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
2ol - SR
{S.P. GUPTA) 16 (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place : New Delhi (DIN-00204504) {DIN-00204605)

Dated : 03/09/2024 Chairman Executive Director




ANNEXURE-A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND QUTGO FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31/03/2024

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

{A) Conservation of Energy:
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.

Company is making all Efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies and increase the share of
renewable energy and reuse of natural recourses. The Company has a process to identify and
evaluate energy risks and opportunities, taking into account future plans, evolving regulatory
frameworks and other aspects. Further Your Company has implemented various guidance
issued by The Ministry of Environment and Forests (MoEF) and other applicable laws to make
hotels more environment friendly.

Company has complied and would comply with the requirements of the Government in this
regard. Your company has continuously being acquiring the ecofriendly methods and
environment friendly technologies and other necessary measures to achieve economy in
consumption of energy. The company is already having following systems in place for
conservation of energy.

a. Using of 4 stage dimmer system.

b. Inguest rooms energy key card system.

¢. Building automation system for ali equipments.

d.  Varicus speed pumps.

e. VFD operated A/c plant with eco- Friendly system.

f.  Most of the equipments are PNG operated.

g. PNG operated baoilers

h.  In guest rooms insulated windows.

i. Eco-friendly laundry equipments.

j. Company has already replaced device in Air condition plants with energy saving devices
k. Company has already replaced all lighting with LED

I Company is using natural pipe gas for boilers & Kitchen equipments.

m Replacement of guest Elevator

n  Replacement of Air Condition plant no.3 with VFD operated ECO- friendly system

o Charcoal base Tandoor replaced with PNG Tandoor.

a. No fresh investment and upgradation in energy conservation system in the year 2023-24

(iiy The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of
energy. : Rs. Nil
a. Natural Gas
b. Solar Energy

(i) The capital investment on energy conservaticn equipments. ¢ Rs. Nil

(B) Technology Absorption:
(i} Company nas already taken steps fowards technology absorption in the last few years and
some of them are listed below:
a. Replacement of Service Elevator Eco Friendly - 2 nos.
b. Replacement of Goods Elevator Energy efficient.
¢. Upgradation in STP Plant for recycling of water
d  Organic Waste Converter,




Upgradation in Rain Water Harvesting System.
Company has already Built Automation System
Company is conducted Water & Energy Audit every year.
Company is already having has LED System

@ o

i, Online Monitoring System of Sewage Treatment Plant and Air Monitoring System
j 100% Reusing of waste water after treatment

k  Charcoal hase Tandoor replaced with PNG Tandoor.

During the previous year the none efforts taken towards technology absorption.

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or impart substitution.
a. Cost Reduction
b. Product Improvement
{iiy in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).
the details of technology imported

(@) + Washer extractor
{b) the year of import; ¢ F.Y 2019-2020
(¢) whether the technology been fully absorbed 1 Yes
(d} if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, : Not Applicable
and the reasons thereof.
{iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Davelopment. : Not Applicable
Particulars 31°'March 2024 31%March 2023
Earnings 121,439,268 115,422 872
Outgo / Expenses 9,237,822 5,102.744

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{(S.P. G’UPTA) {(KAVEEN GUPTA)
(DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204805)
Chairman Executive Direcior
- S
(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Delhi Chief Financial OfficerCompany Secretary
Dated : 03/09/2024 M.No . -FCS 8984 (M.no. A-26116)
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Form No. AQC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Mundreds )
1. Sl No. -1
2. Name of the subsidiary- Sun Aero Limited

3 the date since when subsidiary was acquired- 22/10/1993

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting
period 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024.

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries. —=N A.

6. Share capital ~Authorized Share Capital — 1000000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and paid up
share capital- 70000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

7. Reserves & surplus : 277,741,050
8. Total assets : 278,582,050
9. Total Liabilities : 121,000

10. Investments : -

11. Turnover : 14,042,997
12, Profit before taxation : 102,333
13. Provision for taxation : (27,664)
14, Profit after taxation : 128,997

15. Proposed Dividend : -
16. % of shareholding : 100%

Notes: The follewing information shali be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations ~N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. — N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures Name of Associates/Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date ! N.A.
2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired- N.A.




(2
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on
the year end
i) No,
i) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
i) Extend of Holding %

4. Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet

7. Profit/ Loss for the year
i.) Considered in Consolidation
ii.) Not Considered in Consolidation

—

NA.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.
N.A.

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — N.A.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.- N.A.

AUDITORS' REPORT
As per our report of even dats

For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES Cet |~
Chartered Accountants (S.P. GUPTA)
Firm Regn, No.004985N (DIN-00204504)
Chairman
Q] - SR
{ANIL SOOD) (VIPIN JAIN)
Place : New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer

Dated : 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8984
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et'_f-: ; } P

(KAVEEN GUPTA)
(DIN-00204805)
Execuiive Director

s‘\C%} % -
(NEHA RAJPUT)
Cempany Sacretary
(M.No. A-26118)




ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. AQC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014] for the year ended on 31st March, 2024

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRP PROVISO THERETO

-

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm’s Length basis:

Sl. No, Particulars Details
(a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship : NIL
{b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(¢}  Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
{dy Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction : NIL

including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangemenis or - NIL.
transaction
(fy  Date of approvat by the Board ; NiL
(@) Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL
(hy Date on which the special resolution was passed in General - NIL

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction at Arm’s Length basis:

Si. No. Particulars Detaiis
{a) Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship ; NIL
{b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
(¢} Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : NIL
{dy Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or fransaction : ML

including the value, if any
{e) Date of approval by the Board : NiL
{f)  Amount paid as advances, if any : NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Cop) - o
(8.P. GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place; New Deihi {DIN-00204504) {DIN-00204605)
Dated : 03/09/2024 Chairman Executive Director




ANNEXURE 7O DIRECTOR REPORT

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

In an endeavor to safeguard the interest of public at large, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) provides that the
performance of the board of directors of listed companies and prescribed class of companies must be
reviewed regularly against appropriate measures. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of a company is required under Section 178 of the Act to formulate a policy for recommending it to
the Board of directors of the company, setting the criteria, based on which the performance of each and every
dirgctor including the performance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Based on such performance evaluation, remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and
other senior management shall be determined. such an evaiuation procedure will provide a fine system of
checks and bafances on the performance of the directors and will ensure that they exercise their powers in a
rationai manner.

This policy aims at establishing a procedure for conducting periodical evaluation of directors’ performance and
formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attribute and independence of each and every
director of the Company in order o effectively determine issues relating to remuneration of every director, key
managerial personnel and other employees of the Company. This policy further aims at ensuring that the
committees to which the Board of Directors has delegated specific responsibilities are performing efficiently in
conformity with the prescribed functions and duties. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall be responsible to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in the senior management of the Company and recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal.

In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shail carry out the evaluation of performance of
every director, key managerial personnel and other employees in accordance with the criteria contained
herein, based on which their remuneration shall be determined.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD

It shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall be supported by the Company Secretary to
crganize the evaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The evaluation
process will be used constructively as a system to improve the directors’ and committees’ effeciiveness, to
maximize their strength and to tackle their shortcomings.

The Board of Directors shall undertake the following activities on an annual basis:
[.  The Chairman of the Company shail meet with each and every director individually to discuss his / her
performance throughout the year.

ll.  Review performance evaluation reports submitted by the Chairperson of various committees along with
their suggestions on improving the effectiveness of the committee. Also, the reguirement of establishing
any new committees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

I, Review the various strategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance objectives for
directors, in consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company’s business.

IV. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyze its own performance during the year together with
suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant to the performance objectives.

In conformity with the requirement of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be
done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

AT




RESPONSIBILTY OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Independent Directors shall evaluate the performance of non - independent directors and board as a whole.
The independent directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year to review the performance
of the non- independent directors, performance of chairperson of the Company and Board as a whole, taking
into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

EVALUATION FACTORS .
The Board of Directors shali pay regards to the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the
performance of a particular direcior:

fn respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects have been provided to assist with the evaiuation
process in respect of performance of independent directors, non- independent directors, other employees of
the Company and committees of directors separately, as, such evaluation factors may vary in accordance with
their respactive functions and duties.

Rating Scale
Scale Performance
Exceptionally good
Good
Satisfactory
Needs improvement
Unacceptable

= MW ko

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Overall Rating:

- |Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other Laws

- |Compliance with ethical standards

- {Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

- |Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees
- |Attendance & presence in general meetings

- |Leadership qualities

- 1Qualifications

- {Disclosure of independence, and disclosure of interest

-_[Independent view on key appointments & strategy formulation

- |Objective evaluation of Board's performance

- |Review of integrity of financial information

- |Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests

- |Appointment & removal of KMPs

- |Determination of level of remuneration of KMPs
- |Updation of skills and knowledge

- [FPunctuality

- |Information regarding externai environment

- |Seeking expert opinion, when required

- |Raising of concerns to the Board

- iReporting of frauds, viclation etc.

- |Team work attributes

- |Safeguard of confidential information

o




NON ~ INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS / NON ~ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS/CMD

QOverall Rating:

Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

Strategic planning- financial & business

Operational performance of the Company

Monitoring performance against plans

Steps initiated towards Business Development

Steps initiated towards Branding of the Company

Compliance with ethical standards

Exercising duties ditigently

Qualifications

Punctuality

Disclosure of interest

Leadership skills

Motivating employees, providing assistance & directions

Establishment of internal control processes

Communication skills

Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & committees

Attendance of general meetings

Team work attributes

Monitaring policies, encouraging suggestions

Supervising & training the staff members

Safeguard of confidential information

COMMITTEES QOF BOARD

The Beard has constituted the following committees:

Rad L

Audit Committee;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
Corporate Social Responsibilities Committee
Share Transfer Committee

For evaiuating the performance of each committee, the Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following
aspects:

Qverall Rating:

Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws

Compliance with its charter documents B127

Compliance with ethical standards& code of conduct of Company

Commitiee’'s accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives

Redressal of complaints & grievances

Coordination with other committees and Board of Directors

Fulfiliment of roles & responsibilities B132

Adherence to Company’s policies and internal procedures




ENTIRE BOARD Overall Rating:

Is the composition of the board appropriate with the right mix of Knowledge and skiils
- |required to drive organizational performance in the Light of future strategy?

- _|[Members of the board meet all applicable independence requirernents.

The Board of Directors is effective in establishing a corporate environment that
promotes timely and effective disclosure, fiscal accountability, high ethical standards
- |and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. .

The Board of Directors is effective in developing a good corporate governance
- ipractice that allows and encourages the Board to fuffill its Responsibilities.

The Board is provided with sufficient information about material risks and problems
- ithat affecis the Company’s business and prospects.

The Board receives regular financial updates and takes all necessary steps to
ensure the operations of the organization are sound and reviews the organization’s
performance in carrying out the stated mission on a regular basis.

Are sufficient numbers of board meetings, of appropriate length, being held to enable
- |proper consideration of issues?

The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets expectations in
- |terms of length and level of detail

Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open Communication,
- imeaningful pariicipation, and timely resoiution of issuas.

The Chairman of the Board effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the
- |Board meetings and the policy and governance work of the Board.

Nomination and appointment of Board members and their Remuneration follow
clearly established procedures laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration
- |Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY Overall Rating:

- [Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws
- |Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- {Reporting to the Board about compliance with applicable laws

- iEnsuring compliance with secretarial standards

- iAssistance to the board of directors
- |Discharge of duties assigned by Board

- [success of meetings convened

- |Preparation of minutes

Altendance & presence in meeting of board, committees of Board and general
- {meseting

- {Assistance in obtaining required approvals form Board, shareholders, Government

- |Representation before various regulators on behalf of the company

- |Advising Board on corporate governance and compliance there under

- |Punctuality

OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR EMPLOYEES

QOverall Rating:

- [Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws
- [Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company

- [Fulfillment of roles and responsibilities granted to them

- |Achiavement of target fixed

- |Punctuality and other personality related aspects
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REMUNERATION
The Company aspires {o pay performance linked remuneration to its directors, key managerial persennel and
other senior employees. For this reason, based on the fore-stated criteria of evaluation of performance of
directors, Company Secretary and other Key Managerial Personnel and senior employees, their remuneration
shail be determined and reviewed from time to time by the Chairman & Managing Director.

REVIEW

Subject to the approval of Board of Directors, the "Nomination and Remuneration Committee” reserves its
right to review and amend this Policy, if required, to ascerfain its appropriateness as per the needs of the
Company. The Policy may be amended by passing a resolutien at a meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

DISCLOSURE

In accordance with the requirement under the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder, disciosures will
be made in the Board Report regarding the manner in which the performance evaluation has been done by
the Board of Directors of its own performance, performance of varicus Committees of Directors and individual
Directors.

] < L; i

S.P. Gupta (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Director (DIN-00204605)
Dated : 03/09/2024 {DIN-00204504) Executive Director




ANNEXURE-3
Annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
For the Financiat Year 2023-2024

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility} Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the CSR

Committee, had formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy ("CSR"). As per the Policy Statement, the
Company's CSR policy will focus on addressing the critical social economic issues.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Name Designation No. of Meeting of CSR No. of Meeting of CSR
Committee heid during the  Commiittee attend during
year the year
{i) Sh. 5.P.Gupta (DIN:  Chairman (Chairman
Cum Managing 1 1
00204504) Director )
(i) Sh.Vipul Gupta (RIN:  Member (Whole Time ’ ’
00204638) Director)
() Sh. Kaveen Gupia(DIN:  Member {Whole Time 1 1
00204605 _) Cirector)

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company: Not Applicable

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report); Not
Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rute (3) of rule 7 of the Companies {Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

Si Financiat Year Amount available for set off from Amount Required to be set off for the
No preceding financial year financial year, if any
1 NIL

Total E

6 Average net profit of the company for last three financial years -Rs. 3,72,62,996/-

7. a. Two Percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) -Rs. 7,45,260/

b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
c. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

d. Total CSR obiigation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). -Rs.7,45,260/-




8. (a). CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent {in Rs.)}

Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year, (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6)

Total Amount transferred to any fund
specified under schedule Vil as per
second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
745,300 Nil . NA Nil
{b). Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(H 2) 3) (4) (5} (6) (7) (8}
Amount
spent on the
projects or
Projects or programs proegrams
Sector (1) Local area or Sub - heads:
in other {1) Direct Amount
which (2) Specify the State expenditure | Cumulative [spent . Direct
CSR the and district where | Amount outlay| on projects | expenditure | or through
S. | proiect or Project projects or programs {budget) or programs | upto to the { implementin
No| activity is covered was undertaken project or (2) reporting g agency”
identified programs wise| Overheads pericd
{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
(in Rs.}
(1 (2} (3) (4) (%) (6) ) (8)
Amount
spent on the
projects or
Projects or programs programs
Sector (1) Local area or Sub — heads:
in ather {1) Direct Amount
which (2) Specify the State expenditure | Cumulative |spent : Direct
CSR the and district where  jAmount outlay| on projects | expenditure | or through
S.i project or Project projects or programs (budget) or programs | upto to the | impiementin
Nai activity is covered was undertaken project or {2 reporting g agency”
identified programs wise; Overheads period
For Charitable
As per Clause Dlagréosmi'sen]:zces
Abhinandan|lil of schedule| 2N Worsing fof Abhinandan
4 | JanKalyan | Vilofthe | re0ucinginequalities 745300 745300  745,300] Jan Kalyan
: . faced by socially and .
Society Companies - Society
act 2013, economically .
backward groups in
Delhi
TOTAL 745,300 745,300 745,300

(d)
(e)
(f)

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

Excess amount for set off, if any:

Total amount spent for the Financial Year {8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 8,06,200/-




sk No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 745 260
{ii) Totat amount spent for the Financial Year 745,300
{iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii}-(i)] -40
{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years, if any -
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iif}-(iv)]

-

8. {a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA
{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year{s): NA

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: The Company has not created or acquirad any capital
assets through CSR spent in the Financial Year 2023-24.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): The Company had undertaken to spend an amount of 7,45,300/- during the financial year 2023-
24 as per mandatory requirement and no CSR amount left unspent.

Sof b

G- =
(S.P. GUPTA) {KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi (DIN-G0204504) (DIN-00204605)
Dated : 03/089/2024 Chairman Executive Director
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standzlone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Sunair Hotels Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein referred as "the Standalone Financial Statements"y.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the (Accounting Standards) Rules 2021 ("AS")and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics {CoE) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl} together with the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the Standalene
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act an Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report (hereinafter
called as "Board Report") which comprises various information’s required under section 134(3} of the Companies
Act 2013 but does not include the Standalone Financiat Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statement dees not cover the Board Report and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Board Report
and in doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or ctherwise appears to be materially
missiated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Beard Report,
we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standatone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
T,




adegquate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively fer ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease gperations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur ohjectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

a) identify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procadures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the operative
effectiveness of Company's internal controf systems.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related toc events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going cencern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gqualitative factors in {i} planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standatone Financial Statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

This report includes a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act,
since in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the said Grder is applicable
to the Company and has been annexed as Annexure - A.

1.

As required by section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

al

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which t¢ the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss and the standalone statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,

Cn the bhasis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure — B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adeguacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financiai controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements.

{a) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been paid/provided by the Company
to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
financial statements-Refer Note No. 33 and 37 to the Standalone financial statements.

(if) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative

contracts.
.
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{iii) There have heen no amounts required o be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

{iv} (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
{Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shali whether, directly or indirectly, fend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, ne funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Parties),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 1l(e}, as provided under (a} and (b), contain any material
misstatement.

{v) {a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
{b) The Company have not proposed any dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature
of recording audit trail {edit log} facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature heing tampered with,

(vi

Rty

As proviso to Rule 3{1} of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 33, 2024.

For Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

Sl [ -

(Anil Spod)

Date : 03/09/2024 Partner
Place: New Dethi Membership No. 83939




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to In paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited of even date)

(i}

(ki

—

e

(v

{v)

{vi)

in respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment. The company has no intangible asset.

{(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover al} the items of property, plant and equipment in &
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant and equipment were physically verified by
the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and eguipment (including Right of Use assets)
during the year.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have heen initiated during the
vear or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024, for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

{a) The inventory includes food, Beverage, Operating Equipment, spares were physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

{b} The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no requirement to file quarterly
returns/statements by the Company with such hanks. Hence, this clause is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee(s} or security(ies) or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans Secured or Unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any parties hence clause 3(ii}(a) to 3{ifi) (f} is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of locans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Qrderis not
applicable to the Company.

in our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, maintenance of cost records
has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013.

{vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
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(@} The Company has generally been regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including goods and
service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it with the approgriate authorities except few instances of delays in deposits.

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of above
statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more thap six months from the
date they become payable.

{b) The dues in respect of service tax, value added tax, income tax and excise duty which have not been
deposited as at March 31, 2024, on account of dispute are given below:-

Period to Forum where dispute
Amount which the is pending
Name of the | Nature of (inRs amount
statute dues L.acs) relates

Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2001-02 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2002-03 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nii AY 2003-04 High Court, New Dethi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2004-05 High Court, New Dethi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1861 fax Nil AY 2005-06 High Court, New Dethi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1981 tax Nil AY 2006-07 ITAT, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2007-08 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 fax Nil AY 2008-09 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2009-10 High Court, New Delhi
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2010-11 High Court, New Delhi |
Income-tax Income-

Act, 1961 tax Nil AY 2011-12 High Court, New Delhi

* Amounts are net of payments made and without considering interest for the overdue period, if any, as
may be levied if demand as raised is upheld.

# Excluding interest and additional tax

{viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not surrendered or disclosed
any transactions, previously unrecerdead in the books of account, in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act
as income during the year.

{ix) fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any
term loan from banks / others during the year. Hence clause ix {a) to {c) is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

{e) On an overall examination of the Standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has nol
taken any funds from any entity or persen on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

-
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{f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised any ioans during the year on the pledge of securities held in the subsidiaries.

{x} (a) The Company has net raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instrumants) during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x) {a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or partially or
convertible debentures during the year under audit.

{xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12} of the Act has
heen filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, with
the Central Government.

{c) According to the information and explanaticns given to us, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Campany is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report
on clauses 3{xii} {a), {b) and (c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone financial statements
as required by the appiicable accounting standards.

{xiv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not require to have internai
audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014.

{xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence, reguirement te report on clause 3{xv) of the Crder is not applicable
to the Company.

(xvi)  {a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi) (a), {b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank)} Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi} (d) of the Order is
not applicable.

{(xvii} The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year under our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

{(xviii) There has heen no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, requirement to
report on clause 3{xviii} of the Grder is not applicable to the Company.

{(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to betieve that any material
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uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabitities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fali due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Compa ny.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx){a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) or other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) is not applicable for the year.

{b} There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are reguired to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of Section $135(6) of the Act.

For Anit Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0049385N
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{Anil Sood)
Date : 03/09/2024 Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Sunair Hotels Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunair Hotels Limited {“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible far establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note} issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl}. These
respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the iCAl
and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controis over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively
in ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financiat controis
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due te fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting inciudes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
orovide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standatone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made o_r;ty} in accordance with authorisations of management and
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directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Standalone financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possihility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrels over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting ware operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Anil Scod & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004885N
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(Anit Sood}
Date : 03/09/2024 Partner
Place; New Delhi Membership No. 839395




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CiN: U74899DL1977PLC008495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhofels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024
{All amounts in thousand ¥,_unless otherwise stated)

AS AT AS AT
ShL Note 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No. Particulars Ne, mount Amount

I, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a) Share capital 3 397,500.00 397,500.00

(b} Reserves and surpius 4 1,338,003.50 1,736,503.50 127637139 1673,871.38
{2} Non-current Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 157,854 .66 158,168.02
{b) Other long-term liabilities 6 89,420.00 90,415.00
(c} Long-term provisions 7 26,591.86 273,866.52 16,552.10 265,136 12
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 8 26,028.31 24,823.93
(b) Other Current Liabiiities g 101,324 .41 96,989.64
(c} Short-term provisions 10 10,660.90 138,014.61 13,418.40 135,231.97
TOTAL 2,148 384 .63 2,074,239.47
. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
() Tangible assets 11 1,209,669.37 1,217.581.95
{b) Non-current investments 12 692,710.30 610,866.18
{¢) Long-term icans and advances 13 54,331.00 30.528.99
{d) Other non-current assets 14 12,753.36 759,794,686 12,.753.36 654,248.53
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 15 73,478.46 72,547 .33
(b) Trade receivables 18 26,783.97 31,788.68
(c) Cash and bank balances 17 16,735.82 4{,921.43
(d} Shori-term ioans and advances 18 57,863.47 53,566.65
(e} Other current assets 19 4,058 89 178,920.60 3,584 01 - 202,409.00
TOTAL 2,148,384.63 2,074,239.47
Significant Accounting Policies 2 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our report of even date "ilf-'?!i - Q-
For ANIL SOGCD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA) {KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director
Firm Regn. No.004985N (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
(ANIL S300D) {(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place-New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary
Dated: 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83839 M.No.-FCS 8884 (M No. A-26118)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC00O8495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unfess otherwise stated)

Si Note 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No. Particulars No. Amount Amount
i. Revenue
(a} income from coperations 20 861,407,490 6826,086.73
(b} Other Income 21 25,752.97 32,970.65
il. Total Revenue 887,160.46 859,075.37
IH. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 22 48,718.06 38,543.38
(b) Cost of utilities and hospitality services 23 1,098.15 903 .41
(d) Employee benefit expenses 24 135,148.54 106.990.63
{e) Other expenses 25 380,966.04 340,828.10
(fy Finance costs 26 61.63 59.30
{g) Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 33,811.80 3477579
{h} Expenditure on CSR Activity 28 745,30 806.20
IV. Total Expenses 610,649.51 522 807.81
V. Profit! (loss) before exceptional item and tax (il - IV) 76,5610.95 136,168.57
Less : Exceptional item - -
VI. Profit/ {loss) before tax (IV - V) 76,510,95 136,168.57
VIl Tax expense/(saving)
{a) Current tax 8,387.78 17.985.16
(b} Deferred tax -314.36 18,370.27
{c) Earlier Years Taxes 5,805.42 13,878.84 - 36,355.43
VI Profit / (loss) for the year (V - VI) 62,632.11 99,813.13
1X. Pricr period adjustments - -
X. Profit/ (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (Vi - VIIi) 62,632.11 99,813.13
XL Earnings per equity share (EPS) 29
(a) Basic 1.58 2.51
(b} Diluted 1.58 2.51
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our report of even date C»’}/ : S ﬂ"—”

For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES {S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)

Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director

Firm Regn. No.004885N (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204608)

k\lc\ } ,,,,, . I (:j) ) Q(\) } e

{ANIL SOOD) (VIPIN JAIN) {(NEHA RAJPUT}
Place-New Dethi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Dated: 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8984 {M No. A-28116)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC008485

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Si.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in thousand Z, uniess otherwise stated)

No. Particulars

A,

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit /{loss) before tax and after prior period expenses

Adjustments for:

- Interest fncome

- Dividend Received

- Depreciation

- Profit (Loss) on sale of Assets

Operating {loss) before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

-(increase) / Decrease in inventories

-(Increase} / Decrease in Debtors

-(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances
-(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current assets
-(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current assets
-increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

-Increase / (Decrease) in Other long-term liabilities
~Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term provisions
-Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term loans and advances
-Increase / (Decrease) in Sundry Liabilities
-Increase / {Decrease) in Other Provisions

Cash (used in) operations

Direct taxes (paid)

Net cash (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Assets

Dividend received

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income

Increase / (Repayment) of Term Loan

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

LA

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount

70,705.52 123,091.66

-21.37 -40.24

-2.59 -2.30

33,911.80 34,775.79

-111.13 -58.29

104,482.23 157,766.62

-931.13 -2,000.65

5,004.71 -15,584.78

-4,296.82 25,373.95

-473.98 4,256.69

- 2,598.02

1,205.38 9,653.02

-995.00 -716.00

10,039.76 674.79

-23,802.02 -1,616.67

4,334.77 13,478.18

-2,757 .51 4,856.58

91,810.41 198,739.75

8,387.78 17,985.16

(A) 83,422 63 180,754.58

-81,744.12 -142,354.72

-26,238.09 -30,371.83

350.00 300.00

2.59 2.30

(B) -107,629.61 -172,424.24

21.37 40.24 .

(C) 21.37 40.24

(24,185,611) 8,370,578




CASH FLLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in thousand T, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 40,921.43 32,550.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (E) 16,735.82 40,021.43
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D) -24.185.61 8,370.58
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Cash in Hand ‘ 2,803.43 2,548.08
FDRs with Banks 521.37 -
Balances with Banks 13.411.02 38,373.35
16,735.82 40,921.43

Significant Accounting Policies: Note No. 2 -

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our report of even date ‘} f‘ o "11}/

For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)

Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director

Firm Regn. No.Q04985N (DIN-00204504) {DIN-00204605)

el - et ) Gl -

{ANIL SOOD) (VIFPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place-New Delhi Pariner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Dated: 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83839 M.No.-FCS 8984 (M. No. A-26116)




SUNAIR MOTELS LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL! ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

aj

b}

The Standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules 2021 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as
applicable.

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the hisiorical cost
convention basis. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

C.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires estimates and assumplions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and fabilittes on the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual
resuits and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

(i) Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for
the intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

{i) Land is stated at originai cost of acquisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized,

b} Leased Assets:
(i) Cperating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other
(i) Einance Leases: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present vaiue of the minimum
lease rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount
shown as lease liability. The principal companent in the lease rental is adjusted against the
lzase liability and the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(i) However, rentals referred to in (i) or (i} above and the interest component referred to in (ji)
above pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(iv) Ali assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equai o net
investment in the lease. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in the year in which
such costs are incurred. income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate
implicit in the lease to the net investment. :

Intangible Assets & Amortisation:

intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
‘Intangible Assets" and are amortised over the useful life of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold land: over the period of lease. Lilg
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b) Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technology and
three years in case of indigenous technology.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciafion and amortization; .

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Egquipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant fo the requirements of Scheduie-ll of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Froperty, Plant and
Equipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residuai values of the FProperty, Plant and
Equipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b) Intanaible Property, Plant and Equipments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata
basis for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant
change from previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization period and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However,
no amortization expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:

An asset is trealed as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs that are attributable fo the acquisition or construction of gqualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue in the period in which they are incurred.

. Valuation of Investrent:

a) Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests.
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management's intention at the
time of purchase.

b} Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment
individually.

c) Long term investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution,
other than temporary, in the carrying vaiue of each investment.

d} Cost for gverseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment.

Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantiaily for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Straight Line Method
basis using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of such investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets
acquired and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment
properties sold during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net

disposal proceeds is charged or credited to th\e statement of profit and ioss.
A
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Valuation of Inventory: :
Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined
on weighted average basis.

Revenue Recognition:

All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recogrised only when it is reasonabily certain that
the ultimate collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent
years are declared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the peried in
which the benefit is expected to accrue.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate"
as prescribed by the ICAl, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the
year-end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions
denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction.
However, transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

¢) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on transiation is
recognised in the statement of profit and ioss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of
Property, Plant and Eguipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

e} Difference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date
of obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called 'Exchange
Difference (FC Loan)” Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f} Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proporticnately over the effective life of the contract.

Employee Benefits :

a) Al short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability (accrued
expense), after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense).

b) Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and ioss.

¢) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

d) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuariai
vaiuation is done as per projected unit method.

e) Actuariat gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not

Ty Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any stuch obiigation.

. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from 'timing differences' between taxable and
accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to
the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :
a} Provisions are recognised for liabilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if; ik




. Prior Period ltemns

c4
() the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
(i) a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
(i) the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will ultimately be received.
b) Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:
(iy a present obligation arising on past events, when if is not probable that an outflow of resources
wiil be required to settle the obligation, .
(i} a present obligation, when na reliable estimate is possible, and
(i) a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outfiow of resources is not
remote. '
c) Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in
view their materiality and the past method of accounting.

Exceptional and Exfra-ordinary ltems;
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.

LAY




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand & _unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised and issued share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 40,000,000 400,000.00 40,000,000 400,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 39,750,000 397,500.00 39,750,000 397.500.00

Total 38,750,000 397,500.00 39,750,000 397,500.00

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 38,750,000 397,500.00 39,750,000 387,500.00

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 39,750,000 397,500,00 39,750,000 397,500.00

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2024 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to
equity shareholders was Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

As on date As on date
No. of Nao. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up
a. Columbia Trading Co. Lid. 2,280,175 573% 2,280,178 573%
b, Kaveen Gupta 3,291,000 8.28% 3,291,000 8.28%
¢. S.P.Gupta 9,259,790 23.30% 9,259,790 23.30%
d. Star Light Credit India Ltd. 4,257 500 10.71% 4,257,500 10.71%
e. Vipul Gupta 2,991,000 7.53% 2,991,000 7.53%
f. VLS Finance Limited* 9,594,824 24.14% 9,594,824 24.14%

(* Under dispute)




Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

Name of the shareholder
Ananya Gupta & Kaveen Gupta
Mrs. Babita Gupta
Mr. Kaveen Gupta
Kaveen Gupta (HUF)

Mrs. Monisha Gupia

Mr. S.P. Gupta

Mrs. Sheel Gupta

S.P. Gupta (HUF)

Mr. S.P. Gupta & Sheel Gupta
Mr. Vipul Gupta

Columbia Trading Co. Ltd.

L i-“-"g

As on date
No. of
Shares % of
held Holding
530,000 1.34%
1,780,000 4.48%
3,291,000 8.28%
465,000 “1.17%
1,415,060 3.56%
9,259,790 23.30%
1,706,150 4.29%
1,631,800 4.10%
522,600 1.32%
2,991,000 7.53%
2,280,176 5.73%

As on date
No, of
Shares % of
held Holding
530,000 1.34%
1,780,000 4.48%
3,291,000 8.28%
465,000 1.17%
1,415,000 3.56%
9,259,790 23.30%
1,708,150 4.29%
1,631,600 4.10%
522,800 1.32%
2,991,000 7.53%
2,280,176 573%




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand Z, unless otherwise stated)

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

A. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance
Closing Balance {A)

B. Other Reserves
General Reserve

Opening Balance
Closing Balance {B)

C. Surplus / {deficit) in the staterment of profit and loss

Opening Balance

Add 1 Net Profit / (Net Loss) for the current year
Amount available for Appropriations

Less: Appropriations

Closing Balance (C)

Total (A+B+C)

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {(NET)

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount

80,000.00 80,000.00
80,000.00 80,000.00
30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
1,196,341.39 1,108,605.17
62,632.11 99 813.13
1,258,973.50 1,208,418.30
- 13,076.61
1,258,973.50 1,186,341.39
1,339,003.50 1,276,371.39

In line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on “Acounting for Taxes on Income”
components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as on 1st April, 2023 and 31st March, 2024 are given as

under:
01/04/2023  For the Year Reversing 31/03/2024

A. Deferred Tax Assets

a. Gratuity Provision 5,950.28 - 2,087.81 3,862.47

b. Prov. For Leave Encashment 1,240.54 181.71 568347 828.77

¢. Prov. For Benus (Good work reward) 839.34 957.62 839.34 057.62

d. Unabscred Business Losses 7,9898.29 - 7,989.2¢ -
Total (A) 16,019.44 1,1098.32 11,479.91 5,648.86
8. Deferred Tax Liabilities

a. Depreciation 174,188.486 - 10,684.95 163,503.52
Total {(B) 174,188.46 - 10,684.95 163,503.52
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (B-A) 158,169.02 -1,109.32 -794.86 157,854 .66

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

6. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Others

Security Deposit
a. Security Deposits

Y

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
88,420.00 003,415.00
89,420.00 80,415.00




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
(Alf amounts in thousand ¥, uniess otherwise stated)

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Provision for Employee Benefits Amount Amount
a. Gratuity 21,215.49 12,829.62
b. Leave Encashment 5,376.37 3,722.48
26,591.86 16,552.10
8. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,520.22 -
(refer note below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 22,508.09 24,823.93
small enterprises (refer note 41)
26,029.31 24,823,93
Particulars{Outstanding from invoice date 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
(iy MSME
Less than 1 year 3,520.22 -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
3,520.22 -
(i) Others
Less than 1 year 18,285.23 24,726.71
1-2 years 703.65 36.31
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years 60.91
22,509.09 24,823.93
(iiiy Disputed dues-MSME
Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others
Less than 1 year “ -
1-2 years - -
2~3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
26,029.31 24,823.93

B
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise sfated)

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

2. Duties & Taxes Payables
b. Advance Sub-License fee
¢. Other Payables

10.SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Total

A. Provision for Employee Benefits

a. Salary & Wages Payable

c. Good-work Reward payable -

e. Provision for Gratuity

f. Provision for l.eave Encashment

Total

31/03/2024
Amount
7.655.42
85,267.27
8401.72

101,324.41

31/03/2024
Amount

5,297.59
3,247 .46
1,457.84

658.01

10,660.90

(T his space bes beeir Sttentionadly foft blank)

3110312023
Amount
8,786.55
81.809.64
6,393 .45

96,989.64

31/03/2023
Amount

55626.73
3,348.31
3,671.21

g72.16

13,418.40
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)

(Al amounts in theusand & unless otherwise stated)

12, NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

COther Investments

Sl Particulars Subsidiary / No. of Shares /Units  Quoted/ Parily Paidf Extent of Holding Amount {Rs.) Basis of
No. Associate / Unquoted Fully Paid (%) Valuation
VI Controlled As on As on As on As on As on As on
Special Eatity /! 31st March 31st March st March 3istMarch  3fstMarch  31stMarch
Others 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
31st March 31stMarch
Investments in Equily Instrumments
t) Sunaero Lid. Subsidiary 70.G00 70,000 Unquoted Fully paid 100% 100% 700.00 70000 AtCost
Total 2’ 700.00 700.00
Inyestment in Mutual Funds
i Aditya Birla Sunlife IBX Fun QOthers. 4,862,640 4,962,840 Quoted  Fully paid W% 100% 53,000.00 50,000.00 At Cost
Aditya Birla Sun Life Arbitrage Fund - Growth - BP 576.803 - Cuaoted Fully paid 100% ~ 15.000.00 - At Cost
Adityz Birlz Sunlife Corporate Bond Fund -G-D Others 582.378 692378 CGuated Fully paid 100% 100% 62.522.54 62,522.54 AiCost
Aditya Birda Overnight Fund- Growth thers - 18608 Quoted  Fully paid - 100% - 22.544.58 At Cost
Axis Short Term Fund- G Others 525.390 812471  Quoted Fully paid 100% 100% 14.006.13 21.051.98 At Cost
Bandhan Bond Fund - Short Term¥ian -G -DP{et Others 807.875 B07.675 Qucted  Fuly paid 100% 100% 30,000.01 30.000.01 At Cost
Bandhan Corpotate Bond Fund-G -DP{arstwhite B QOthers 4,033.827 4963098 Quated Fuily paid 0% 190% 50,745.04 7473368 AtCost
Bandhan Crist iBX Gitapril-2028 Others 2651884 2651884 Quoted  Fully paid 100% 100% 29.037.73 29,037.73 At Cost
Bandhan Ullra Short Term Fund Others - 1,157,581  Quotled Fully paid - 100% - 1500000 At Cost
HDFC Corporte Bond Fund-DP-G Others 1311408 1311409 (Cuoted 100% 100% 33.005.84 33,005.84 AtCost
HDFC Income Fund - Direct Plan - Growth QOthers 155,816 - Quoted 100% - 9.000.00 - At Cost
HOFC Liguid Fund - Direct Plan Otners - 5,850 Quoted - 100% - 29,081.80 At Cost
HOFC Liguid Fund - Direct Pian - Growth Othars 8.498.56 - Quoted  Fully paid 106% - 40,050.00 - At Cost
HSBC Short Duration Fund-D G {Formery L &7 ¢ Qthers 887 99¢ 1845549 Quoled ¥ 108% 100% 2000883 40,838.74 At Cost
HIACH Prudential Corporate Bond Fund a-0P-G Others 3.742,037 3742037 Quoted F 100% 108% 8570090 85.700.90 At Cost
ICICI Prudential Balanczd Advantage Fund - Dire Others 84,527 - Quoted F 100% - 500000 - At Cost
ICICH Prudential Equity Advantage Fund - Direct F Qthers 134.513 - Quoted F 100% - 4,500.00 - Al Cost
ICICH Prudential Liguid Fund - Direct Plan - Growd| Others 81.636 - Quoted £ 100% - 28,000.00 - Al Cost
ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - € Others 258.800 - Quated 100% - £000.00 - At Cost
Kotak Cerporate Bend Fund Direct Growth Others 24,013 24,013 Quoted 100% 100% 7174836 7174836 AtCost
Kotak Salanced Advantage Fund Direct - Growih Others 308,075 - Quoted 100% - 5.000.00 - Al Cost
Kotak Bond Fund {Short Term) - Direct Plan - Gre Others 283631 - Quoted 100% - 15,000.00 - At Cost
Keotak Equity Advamntage Fund - Direct Plan - Grov Qthers 123,785 - Guoted 160% - 4.500.00 - At Cost
Doxivy otak Liguid Fund Girect Plan Growth Others 5978 - Quoted 100% - 29.000.00 - At Cost
fnv) Kotak Overnight Fund - Direct - Growth Others 5.881 - Quoted 160% - 7.047 .44 - At Cost
foxvip  SBI Corperate Bond Fund Others 3.705.864 3.705.864 Quoted 100% 100% 45,000.00 45,0000 AtCost
Total 'ty 679,822.89 £10,266.18
Investment in Mutual Funds
{iy True MNorth Credit opgorunities Fund | Others NA NA NA NA NA NA 12,187.40 -
Total ‘e’ 12,187 .40 -
Total {atb+c) 592,710.30 610.966.18
Summary details of non-current investments:
A Aggregate emount of Quoled investments
Al cost 662,610,296  610.266.184
At market value TE5,424 672 B52.502.890
B. Aggregate amoun! of Unquote estments (Al cost) 760,000 700.000
C. Aggregate amount of unguoted s - -
D. Value of investment Property e i
=

Aggregate provis




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Conid...)
{All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

13. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good

a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority

8. Other Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
a. Income Tax Refundable
b. Cash Seized by LT, Department
c. Other Advances

Total (A)

Total (B)

Total (A+C)

Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc,

Other Officers of the Company

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A. Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good

a. Security deposit to service providers
b. Security deposit for let-out properties

Total

¢. Security deposit with Government Agencies for utilities

15. INVENTORIES

A. Raw Materials & Components {Valued at cost)

Food
Beverage
Operating Equipments

£

Total

Total (A)

55
(Thds space heas Deer intentionally fof? blunk}

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
550.00 550.00
55000 550.00
34,546.00 23,143 89
3,000.00 3.000.00
16,235.00 3,835.00
53,781.00 29,978.99
54,331.00 30,528.99
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
2,406.05 2,406 .05
3,120.00 3,120.00
7.227.31 7,227.31
12,753.36 12.753.36
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
1,400.93 1,466.27
3,347.81 3,065.89
68,728.71 68,015.16
73,478.46 72,547.32




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
a}) Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good 26,783.97 31,788.68
- which have significant increase in credit risk g - -
- which are credit impaired - -
b} Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk - -
- which are credit impaired - -

26,783.97 31,788.68

Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:
Particulars

(i) Undisputed trade receivables - considered good

Less than 6 months 21,993.99 30,531.03
8 months - 1 year 4,789.98 1,257.65
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -

More than 3 years

26,783.97 31,788.68

{ii) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful
Less than 6 months - -
& months - 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years -
More than 3 years ~ -

26,783.97 31,788.68

No trade or other receivabie are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or
jointly with any other person.

)¢

(This spase has bee dnfentionatly kel blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand Z, unless otherwise stated)

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

A. Cash and cash equivalents

a. Balances with banks
Current Account with Scheduled Banks
There are no Earmarked Balances, Margin Money, Security
against borrowings, Guarantees and Other Commitments
included in the balances above (PY Nif)

b. Cheques, drafts on hand
¢. Cash on hand {including Imprest)
Total(A)
B. Qther bank balances
a. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months
but within 12 months from balance sheet date

b. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months
but less than 12 months
Total({B)

Total (A+B)

18. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
unsecured, considered good

Other Loans & Advances

A. Advance License Fees (NDMC) (Prepaid)

B. Advance (Staff & Consultants)

C. Prepaid Expenses (Hotel) {Licence fee L3 & L5)
D. Advance for assets

Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc. :

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

A. Other Taxes Recoverable
i, GST Input

{Thiéx space har been dntentionslly &7 Slank)
e

=74

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
13,411.02 38,373.35

2,803.43 2,548 .08
16,214.45 40,921.43
521.37 -

521.37
16,735.82 40,921.43

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
18,031.02 17.172.40

800.00 815.00
13,567.15 10:113.95
25,465 30 25,465.30
57,863 .47 53,566.65

NIL (P.Y. NIL)

31/03/2024 31/103/2023

Amount Amount
4 058.89 3,584 .91
4.058.8% 3,584.91




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand T, unless otherwise stated)

20. INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

21.

Facilities and Services Charges for Hotel Complex

RRocms

Food & Beverage

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Food

Beverage

Banquet Fees

Other Operating Depariments
Sub License Fees

Income from Operations (Gross)
Less: Excise Duty
Income from Operations (Net)

OTHER INCOME

Interest from Bank Deposits

. Scrap sale

. Income From Travel Desk

. Guest Transport Charges & Tour

. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds

. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds

. Profit on Sale Of Fixed Assets

. Gain / (L.oss) on Foreign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation

Miscellaneous Income
Interest on Income tax refund
Total

P9

31/03/2024
Amount

427.628.91

80,225.34
25,843.24
5.488.43
13,882.49
108,239.09

661,407.49
.00

31/03/2023
Amount

416,393.32

7674173
17,829.68

5618.26
10.099.07
99,414.69

626,096.73

.00

661,407.49

31/03/2024
Amount

21.37
1.31
600.00
1.865.72
14,036.67
2.59
111.13
20.85
7,550.05
1,743.27

626,096.73

25,752,97

(This spece bas been intentionally Rft blunk)

31/03/2023
Amount

40.24
361.52
600.00
1,851.00
14 588,32
2.30
58,29
17.07
15,058.55
601 37

T 32,979.65




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

22. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

23.

24,

1,443.55

31/03/2024
Amount
Materials Consumed
inventory at the beginning of the year 4 53216
Add . Purchases 48,834 65
53,466.81
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 4,748.75
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 48,718.06
Details of Materials Consumed
A. Food 43,901.16
B. Beverages 4 816.90
48,718.06
*  Cost of operating equipments consumed is
directly booked as an expense under its relevant
expenditure head.
COST OF UTILITIES AND HOSPITALITY SERVICES
31/03/2024
Amount
A. Laundry Cost 904.55
B. Health Club 193.59
1,098.15
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
31/03/2024
Amount Amount
A. Salaries, wages and bonus 77,717.01
B. Directors Remuneration £,000.00
C. Contributions to:
a. Provident Fund 5,823.90
b. ESI 436.13
¢. Other Funds 1,970.18 8,230.22
D. Gratuity Fund Contributions 7,300.04
E. Staff Welfare Expenses 3,898.36
F. Exgratia Paid 188.46
(3. Security Services 4 .599.585
H, Contract Labour 6,938.89
I, Manpower QOutsourced 20,278.00
135,148.54

“ 4

(Vhir space has been infentomnally feft blank)

31/03/2023
Amount

4,345.09
38,730.45

43,075.54
4,532.16

38,543.38

35,052 14
3,491.24

38,5643.28

31/03/2023
Amount
773.94
129.47

903.41

31/03/2023
Amount Amount

72,801.26
5,400.00

4,161.47

680.31
6,295.33
3,621.59
4,234 .51
128.40
3,757.66
10,751.88

106,990.63




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand &, unfess otherwise stated)

25, OQTHER EXPENSES

31/03/2024
Amount Amount
a. Power & Fuel 80,426.38
. Rent 2,610.00
c. Repairs & Maintenance ‘
i. Ptant & Machinery 34,083.59
i. Buildings 44,211.56
iii. Others 21,994 60 100,299.74
d.  Advertising & Sales Promotion 1,981.55
e. AGM & Conference Charges 3.07
f.  Balance Written off 477993
g. Banquet Expenses 3.37513
h. Cleaning Supply 1,616.39
i. Commission on Rooms 33,548.35
;. Communication Cost 508.42
k. Credit Card Charges 2,02117
{. Director Traveling 10,789.52
m. Guest Supplies 11,756.25
n.  Guest Supply & Relation Expenses 7,260.91
0. Guests Entertainment & Business Fromotion 1,510.03
p. Insurance 2,881.80
q. Internet Expense 988.80
r. Laundry & Dry Cleaning 226.12
s. Legal & Professional Fees 87,289.50
t.  Licence fee 26,155 40
u. Linen 838.46
v. Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance 3,816.60
w. Membership Fees & Subscription 127.55
x. Misc Expenses 2,583 54
y.  Music & Entertainment 420.00
z. Payment to Auditors 403.65
aa. Postage/Courier/Telegram 36.53
ab. Printing & Stationery 2,492 29
ac. R.O.C. Fee 67.53
ad. Uniform 241.45
Total 390,966.04
Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor;
- Audit Fee 325.00
- Tax Audit Fee 78.65
Total 403.65

L0

(Thas space bax beew intentivnedly ft blapk

34,586.43

31/03/2023
Amount Amount
67.556.15
2.496.00

15,590.81

27,394.16
77,581.41
1,155.42
13.64

2,853.11
1.318.14
31.724.41
535.23
1,998.32
8,243.66
9,418.83
8,433.56
766.82
2,621.38
1.024.20
163.4%
85,378.30
26,690.33
980.24
2,341.64
40.55
3,357.94
420.00
403.65
50.57
2.798.11
93.04
339.98
340,829.10

325.00
78.65
403.65




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

26. FINANCE COST

31/03/2024

Amount

a. Interest on Taxes 22.50
b. Bank Charges 3913
Total . 61.63

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

31/03/2024

Amount
Depreciation on Assets 33,811.80
Total 33,911.80

28. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Year Ended March 31.

31/03/2023
Amount

59.30
59.30

31/03/2023
Amount
34,775.79
3477579

Year Ended March 31,

2024 2023
(a) Gross Amount required t¢ be spent by the
company during the year 745.26 806.13
745 25 806.13
Yet to be Yet to be
(b} Amount spent during the year on: In Cash paidincash In Cash paid in cash
(i) On purposes other than {i) above
- Centribution for Medical Relief to poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Society 745.30 - 806.20 -
Total (A): 745.30 - 806.20 -
(¢} Contribution paid to frust controlled by the related party
- N.A NLA - N.A -
Total (B): - - - -
Total {A+B): 745.30 - 806.20 -

.
(Lhis space lets beenr intentivaally kit blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

29.

30.

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount

Total operations for the year
Profit / (loss) after tax 62,632.11 99,813.13
Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares ) - -
Net profit / {loss} for calculation of Basic EPS 62,632.11 99,813.13
Net profit as above 82,632.11 98.813.13
Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares - -
Net profit / {loss) for calculation of Diluted EPS 62,632.11 99,813.13
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS 39,750,000 39,750,000
Effect of dilution:
Convertibie preference shares (numbers) -
Convertible bonds (numbers) -
Stock option granted under ESQP - -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted £ 39,750,000 39,750,000
(a) Basic 1.58 2.51
(b Diluted 1.58 2.51

MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments to Schedule iii disclosures which are not
applicable:

{i) Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of compnay - No propertiy are held by the
company.

(i) Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not applicable as there are no proceedings which
have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Wilifull defaulter - 'The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies - 'The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 580 of Companies Act,
1956 and do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies - 'The Company has complied with the aumber of
layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - ‘The Company has not been approved any
Scheme of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(vi) Details of crypto currency or Virtual currency - 'The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto
currency or Virtual Currency during the year. .,




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

31. Related Party Disclosure _
Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on “"Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given as under in respect of |
refated parties with whom transactions have taken piace: '

a} Related parties and their relationshp
1) Subsidiary Companies : Sun Aero Limited

2) Associate Companies / Firms : Pushpanjali Trexim Pvi. Limited
: Urban LifeStyle Pvt, Lid.
1 Unique LifeStyie Pvt. Ltd.

3) HKey Management Personnel

-Mr. S. P. Gupta : Chairman
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta : Whole Time Direcior
- Mr. Vipul Gupta : Whole Time Director
4}  Relatives of Key Management Personnei
S.P Gupta (HUF) : Mr. S.P Gupta is Karta of HUF
Kaveen Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Vipui Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Vipul Gupta is Karta of HUF
Mrs. Monisha Gupta 1 Wife of Mr. Vipul Gupta
Key_
Associate Managemen Relative of
Particulars Companies  t Personnel KMP Total .
a) Rent -CY - 2,610.00 - 2,610.00
-PY 72.00 2,424,060 - 2,.496.00
b) Directors’ Remuneration -CY - 6,000.00 - 6,000.00
-PY - 5,400.00 - 5,400.00

Balance outstanding on March 31, 2024
Amount Payable -CY - - . -
-PY - - - -

Y

{This space has been ..;';:';*cwtxbﬂa/‘/y left blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand & _unless otherwise stated)

32. In terms of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 718(e), ihe company
had requested its various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and
confirmation regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details
and information from the said parties the cutstanding on account purchase made/services chtained from
such suppliers including the disputed amcunis due to them,-were ascertained and reflected in the
financials as due to Micro & Small Enterprises. The details in respect of the parties that could be
identified as Micro and Small enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information available
with the management are given below:

3110312024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
{i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately} remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the end of
each accouniing year.
-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 3,520.22 -
-Interest due on ahove - -

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year. - -

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid bul beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interesi specified
under the MSMED Act 2008. - -

(iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2008. - -

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for}

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
{i) Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil
B. Guarantees Nil Nil
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks Nil Nil
D. Tax demand disputed in appeals Nil Nil
£, Others () 80,000.00 (M 80,000.00 (*)
(*) The amount represents forfeitable security deposit, which
is not due as per the legal opinion received by the
Company. OMP and Enf(c) have been filed in the
matter.Refer to Note No. 37.
(il Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining {o be executed on 5,000.00 1.500.00
capital accounts and not provided for
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil

C. Other commitments g Nil Nil




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

34. Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits
The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuily plan. However, every employee who has
compieted five years or more of service geis gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (last drawn basic
salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit éxpense recognised in the profit and loss
account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

. Gratuity
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
1. Change in present value of obligation Amount Amount
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 16,500.83 14,586.70
b) Acquisition adjustment - -
¢) Interest cost 1.231.93 1,042.21
d) Past service cost - -
e} Current service cost 1,457.84 1,411.00
fy Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -
g) Settelement cost/ (Credit) - -
h) Benefit paid -1,127.53 -
i) Actuarial {gain) / Loss on obligation 4,610.27 -538.08
j) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 22,673.33 16,500.83

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets
a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquisition adjustment - -
c) Expected return on pian assets - -
d} Contribution - “
e} Benefits paid - -
f) Actuarial gain/ {loss) on plan assets - -
gy Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -

3. Fair value of plan assets
a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b} Acquistion adjustment - -
¢) Actual return on plan assets - -
d) Contributions - -
e) Benefits paid - -
f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the pericd - -
g) Funded status -22.673.33 -16,500.83
h} Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets - -

4. Actuarial gain/ losses recognized

a) Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation -4.610.27 539.08
b) Actuarial {gain) / loss for the period- plan assets - “
¢) Total (gain) / loss for the period 4.610.27 -539.08
d) Actuarial {gain) / loss recognized in the pericd 4,610.27 -539.08
g) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period - -
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(G: 745.93 -201.55

0o
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5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
b} Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period

¢} Funded status / Difference

d) Excess of actual over estimated

e) Unrecognized actuarial {gains) / losses

f) Net assets / {liability) recognized in balance sheet

6. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss -
a) Current service cost
b) Past service cost

) Interest cost

) Expected return on plan assets

) Curtailment cost / (Credit)

) Settlement cost / (credit)

) Net actuarial (gain) / [oss recognized in the period

) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

- M 0O 0

o

22,8673.33

-22,673.33

-22,673.33

1,457.84

1,231.93

4,610.27
7,300.04

7. Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period

b) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period

¢) Benefit paid

d} Actual return on plan assets

g} Acguisition adjustment

f) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses

8. Amount for the current period
a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the pericd
b} Fair value of plan asseis
c) Surplus / (Deficit)
d} Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain
e} Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain

9. Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
g} Opening net liability
b} Expense as above
c) Benefits paid
d) Actual return on plan assets
e} Acquisition adjustment
f) Closing net tiability

22,673.33
16,500.83

7,300.04

22.673.33
-22.8673.33
-4,610.27

15,111.19
7,300.04

22,411.23

10. Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of india Securities
b) State Government Securities
¢) High quality corporate bonds
d) Equity shares of listed companies
e) Property
f) Special deposite scheme
g) Funds managed by insurer
hy Bank balance (For Gratuity)
Total

16,500.83

-16,500.83

-16,500.83

1.411.00

1,042.21

-539.08
1,914.13

16,500.83
14,586.70

1,914.13

16,500.83

-16,500.83
£530.08

13,197.06
1,914.13
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11. The principal assumption used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are

shown below:

a) Discount rate
k) Rate of return on Plan Assets
c) Salary Escalation
2% PLA. for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A. thereafter

II. Leave Encashment

a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
b) Acquisition adjustment

¢) Imerest cost

d) Past service cost

e) Current service cost

f) Curtailment cost / (Credit)

g) Settelement cost/ (Cradit)

h) Benefit paid

i} Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation

31/03/2024
Amount
7.15

5%

31/03/2024
Amount
4 594 64
343.03
658.01

-530.44
969.14

31/03/2023
Amount
7.45

4%

31/03/2023
Amount
4.150.91
296.58
584.44

-437.29

1) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets
a) Fair vaiue of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquisition adjustment
¢} Expecied return on plan assets
d) Contribution
e) Benefits paid
f) Actuarial gain / {loss} on plan assets

6,034.38

4,504.64

g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

3. Fair value of plan assets
a) Fair vatue of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b) Acquistion adjustment
¢} Actual return on plan assets
d) Contributions
e) Benefits paid
f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
g) Funded status
h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assels

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized
a) Actuariat gain / (loss) for the period- obligation
b) Actuarial (gain} / loss for the pericd- plan assets
¢} Total (gain) / loss for the pericd
d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
e) bnrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(Gi

-6,034.38

969.14

969.14
969.14

-172.10

5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period
Funded status / Difference

Excess of actual over estimated -
Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses

) Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet

D O O O

)
)
)
)

—h

6,G34.38

-6,034.38

6,034.38

-4,594.64

-437.29

-437.29
-437.29

-337.14

4,594 .64

-4,594.64

4,594 64
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Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

a) Current service cost 6858.01% 584.44
b) Past service cost - -
¢) Interest cost 343.03 2986.58

d} Expected return on plan assets - -
e) Curtailment cost/ (Credit) - -
f} Seitlement cost/ (credit) - -
g} Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period 969 14 -437.29

h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses- 1,970.18 44373

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,034.38 4.,594.64
n) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 4,594 .64 4,150.91
¢) Benefit paid -530.44 -
d) Actual return on plan assets - -

e) Acquisition adjustment - -
f) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,970.18 443732
Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,034.38 4,594 .54
b) Fair value of plan assetsas at the end of the period - -
¢) Surplus / (Deficit) -6,034.38 -4 594 64
d) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities {loss) / gain -969.14 437.29
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain - -

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net liability 4,594.64 4,150.91
b) Expense as above 1,870.18 44373
¢) Benefits paid -530.44 -

d) Actual return on plan assets - -
e) Acquisition adjustment - -
f) Closing net liability 5,034.38 4,594 .64

Maior cateqories of plan assets {as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities - -
b) State Government Securities - -
¢) High quality corporate bonds - -
d} Equity shares of listed companies - -
e) Property - -
f} Special deposite scheme - -
g) Funds managed by insurer - -
n) Bank balance {For Gratuity) - -

The principal assumption used in determining leave encashment obligation for the
Company's plans are shown below:

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
a) Discount rate 7.15 7.55
b) Rate of return on Plan Assets - -
c) Salary Escalation 6% 4%

**.. 2% P.A. for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A. thereafter [ 9

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market. Previous year figures have not been given since those are not fully available.




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand Z, unless otherwise stated)

35. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on “Segment
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, taking intc accouns the organisational structure and
different risk and return of these segments. The Company's reportable business segments consisis of the following:

a)
b)
<)

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the followin

Hotel Business
Commercial Centre
Portfolio Management

reporting

g additional policies for segmeant

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating business activities
of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to enterprise as a whole that cannot be allocated to a segment
on reasonable hasis, have been disclosed separately under the column “unailocable”.

Segment assets and labilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Assets and liabilities that cannot

b)

be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed under the column “unaliocable”.

Particulars
Segament Revenue
- Revenue including other income
Net Sales / Income from Operations (A)
Seament Expenses
Affocable Expenses
-Cansumption of Stores, Provisions
& Beverages and Purchase of Mutual Funds
-Empioyee henefit expenses
-Operating / Administration Expenses
-Finance Cost
-Expenditure on CSR Activity

=y
Segment Result {A-B)
lLess : Depreciation
Profit before Taxation
Less . Tax Expense for the year
Profit after Taxation

Segment Assets (including Misc,
expenditure and debit balance of

Profit & Loss Alc)

Segment Liabilities (including long
term liabilities)

Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets

Total Depreciation on fixed assets

Hotel Commercial Portfolia
Business Business Management Total Amount
564,882.11 108,239.09  14,036.26 687,160.46
564,882.11 108,239.09  14,039.26 687,160.45
49.816.21 “ “ 49,815.21
135,148.54 - - 135,148.54
390,966.04 - - 390,866.04
61.63 - - 51.63
745,30 - - 745.30
576,737.71 - “ 576,737.71
-11,855.61 108,239.09  14,039.26 110,422.75
33,911.80
75,510.95
13,878.84
62.632.11
1,066,778.10 1,081,606.53 - 2,148,384.83
325,751.13 86,130.00 - 411,881.13
1,209,668,37 - . 1,209,669.37
33,695.82 215.98 - 33,911.80

The business segments of the Company viz., hotel business and commercial centre are both located at one
geographical place only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the company.

s




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

36. Ratio
As at As at o,
8. No Particuiars Measures| 31 March | 31 March Variance Reason for variance
2024 2023
1 |Current Ratio Times 1.30 1.50 -13%(The ratio is decreased during the current year due
to Increase in payment of advance sub - licensing
fee and other current liabilities during the year as
compared to previous year.
2 |Debt-tquity Ratio Times N.A. MNLA. N.A. NLA.
3 |Debt service| Times N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
coverage ratio
4 Return on equity ratio |Percentag 0.04 0.06 -40%iThe ratio is decreased during the current year due
e to decrease in the profit earmned during the vear as
compared to previous year.
5 tHnventory turncver|Times 0.67 0.54 24% | This ratio has increased due to increase in the cost
ratic of goods sold during the year. This increase is in
consistent with the increase in the revenue earned
during the year.
6 [Trade receivables!Times 22.58 26.0¢ -13%|The ratio is decreased during the current year due
turnover ratio to decreased in the credit sales during the year as
compared to previous year.
7 |Trade payablesiTimes 1.92 1.94 1%|The ratic has increased due to high purchases
turnover ratio made in credit by the Company in the current year,
This increase in purchases in consistent with the
increase in revenue,
8 |Net capital turnoveriTimes 16.17 9.32 73%{The ratio has increased due to increase in turnover
ratio of the Company in the current year and decrease in
the profit in comparison to previous year
9 |Net profit ratic Percentag 0.08 G.16 -41%|The ratio is decreased during the current year due
e to decrease in the profit earned during the year as
compared to previous year.
10 {Return  on  capital|Percentag 0.04 0.07 -46% |This ratio has decreased due to decrease in the
empioyed e profits earned by the company in the current year.
11 {Reiurn on investment |Perceniag 0.00% 0.01% -50%|This ratio has decreased due to decrease in
e investment made by the company in the current
year.
S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator
1 {Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities
2 |Debt-equity ratio Total debt = long term borrowings + |Shareholder's equity
3 Debt service|Earning for debt service = Net profit|Debt service = Interest payments + principal repayments
coverage ratio before taxes + non-cash operating
4 Reiurn on equity ratio [Net profits after taxes — preference|Average shareholder's equity
dividend {if any)
5 inventory turnover|Cost of goods sold Average inventory = (Opening + closing balance / 2}
ratio
6 Trade receivables|Net credit saies Average accounts receivables
turnover ratio
7 Trade payables|Net credit purchases Average trade payables
turnover ratio
8 Net capital turnover|Net sales Average working capital (i.e. total current assets less total
ratio current liabiliies)
S |Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales
10 Return on capitallEarning before interest and taxes{Capital employed = Tangible net worth + total debt + deferred
emplioyed (EBIT) tax tiability
11 Return on investment [Income generated from investments |Time weighted average investments

e




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

37. Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Ltd {a registered shareholder of the Company) ufs

38.

39.

40,

41.

42,

34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1895, challenging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hon'ble Dethi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS
Finance Lid in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court is also pending adjudication as an undertaking has been
given by VLS Finance Ltd not to press the execution till the otiginal cross pelition are decided. The
eartler such petition filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on
16/08/2017. The award contained directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd
the forfeited security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest
However, as per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when
the Hon'ble Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of
VLS Finance Ltd and decided in favour of the Company. '

SKIO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before
the Hon'ble NCLT against the Company and others which is also pending adjudication. Simitarly, SFiO
has also filed a complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon’bie NCLT in the court of the learned
ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also stiil pending as on this date.

In the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Ltd. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are stil
pending at different stages.

Income-tax provision has been made in the books of account as per legal advice received by the
Company for assessment of various incomings and outgoings.

Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding statements of
account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the books of account will be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.

EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITENS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the vear (PY Nil) Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Indian thousand rupees.

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous figures have been regrouped / recast wherever considered necessary.

Far ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis e P

Firm Regn. No.004985N o)~ )
(8.P.GUPTA) {KAVEEN GUPTA)
, ' Chairman Executive Director
<l [ (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
(ANIL SO0OD)
Partner
Membership No. 83939 - o
S/ Sell -
(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place : New Detlhi Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Dated: 03/08/2024 M.No.-FCS 8984 (M No. A-26116)
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SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74899DL1293PLCOS5759
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017
PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

DIRECTCORS' REPORT

To,
The Members

The Directors of your company have pleasure in presenting the 31st. Annual Report.of the Company and its
financial accounts for the year ended on 31st March, 2024,

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous years figures are
given hereunder :

Curr.Year Prev.Year
31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Net Sales / Income from:

a) Business Operations 12,893,768 45,193,519
b) Otherincome 1,149,229 907 127
Total Income 14,042,997 46,100,646
Profit / (Loss) before Interest & Depreciation 782,590 2,808,057
Less: Finance cost (Interest) 1,100 -
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation 781,490 2,808,057
Less: Depreciation 679,157 679,157
Profit / (Loss) after Depreciation but before Tax 102,333 2,128,900
lLess: Tax Saving / (Expense)

a) Current Income-tax - 227 469

b} Earlier year(s) Adjustment of Income-tax (96,634) 24 772

¢} Deferred Tax _ 658,970 133,503
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 129,997 1,743,156
Dividend (including Interim, if any, and Final) - -
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Dividend & Tax 129,997 1,743,158
Amount transferred to General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 129,997 1,743,158
Earning per share (Basic) 1.86 24.90
£arning per share (Diluted) 1.86 24.90

2. DIVIDENDS
With a view to conserve funds, the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2023-24

3. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend
declared and paid by the Company .

4. RESERVES
The Board of Directors do not propose any amount o be carried to any reserve.

5. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE QUTLOOK

The Company is engaged in the business of Portfolio Activities and Project development.

The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:
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a) Revenue from operations has reduced from Rs. 45,193,519/ to Rs.12,893,768/-
b) profit before Tax for the year has also reduced from 2,128,900/ to 1,02,333/-
¢} Earning per share has aiso reduced from Rs.24.90/- to Rs. 1,86/

According to the World GDP Ranking 2024 list, India is the fifth largest economy in the World. This
means India's econemic growth next fiscal year will be the fastest among major economies company
is hopefull for the better performance in the upcompanig years . Further the upcoming years, rising
consumption and investments, both domestic and foreign, wili contribute to the nation's growth and
may also help India to rank higher in the World GDP Ranking fist. this wili also beneficial for the
company in long run. The baseline forecast is for the world economy to continue growing at 3.2
percent during 2024 and 2025. A slight acceleration for advanced economies where growth is
expected to rise from 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025 wili be offset by a modest slowdown
in emerging market and developing economies from 4.3 percent in 2023 to 4.2 percent in both 2024
and 2025.

Further The Company has reported profit before Tax of Rs.102,333/- during the period under review
as compared to Rs.21,28,900/- in the previous year. the EPS of the Company has been alsc
decreased from Rs.24.80/- to 1.86/- during the period under review. During the year Company under
review the directors appreciated the efforts of the company. Company is hopeful of better results in
the coming years as well. and company is hopeful that under changed scenerio it would be abel to
have better perforamnce in coming years

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, |F ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of this
report. Although the Company had taken approval from shareholder in the extraordinary generat
meeting dated 01/12/2023 to convert the company from a "Public Limited" to a "Private Limited”, but
process was kept on hold, so now again the company is initiatling the conversion process.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS CR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND CONMPANY'S
OPERATIONS iN FUTURE

The Company had made an application to Reserve Bank of India for voluntary surrender of NBFC
Certificate No. N-14-03086 dated 16/12/2005 issued by Reserve bank of India, Delhi. on 15/11/2023
the Reserve Bank of India, New Delhi in exercise of the powers conferred under section 45-1A {6) of
the reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, passed the order and approved the surrender of NBFC certificate.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNCOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in 'Annexure-A' attached to this report.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

POLICY OF THE COMPANY
The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the

Company's existence are quite minimal, Y
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DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED .BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Sociai Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF L.OANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

PARTICUL.ARS OF CONTRACTS CR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES
There were no fresh contracts or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review. .

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY iIN THEIR REPORTS

There were no gualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.
The provisions relating to submission of Secretariat Audit Report in not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING 7O DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178{3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Web Link of Annual Return, If Any.:-

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant to
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Annual Return is now reguired to be placed on
the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3} read with Section 134(3){(a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board's Report. As the Company doesn't having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publication of Annual Return.

ANNUAL RETURN

The reporting of extract of Annual Return in Form no. MGT-9 had been done away with pursuant fo
amendment in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Adminisiration) Rules, 2014 w.ef. 28/08/2020. Hence, the reporting of extract of
Annual Return has not been made in this report. The Arnual Return is now reguired to be placed on
the website of the Company, if any, in terms of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act
and link thereof is required to be given in the Board’s Report. As the Company doesn’'t having any
website. Therefore, no need to of publication of Annual Return.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
The Company had 5 {Five) Board meetings dated 18/05/2023, 01/09/2023, 31/10/2023, 14/12/2023
and 28/02/2024 during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors

confirm as under:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

k) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the company for

AR

that period; b2
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¢) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annua! accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public falling within purview of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 during the
year Although the company has filed the Return of deposit form {annual form) pursuant to the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

DIRECTORS
Mr.Kaveen Gupta retire at this Annual Generai Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-
appointment.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Anil Sood & Associates Chartered Accountant (firm registration no. 004985 N) New Delhi, the
Statutory Auditor of the Company were appointed as the Auditors of the Company at the 29TH
Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 10th September, 2022 pursuant to section 139 and
142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act , 2013, and the Rules made hereunder, as
amended from time to time, for period of five years till the conclusion of the 34th Annual General
Meeting , subject to the ratification by the shareholders at every Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

SHARES
a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b) SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
c) BONUS SHARES
The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.
d) EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option scheme to the employees during the year under
review,

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143
QTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABI.E TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported, any instance of fraud committed
against the company by its officers or employees,under section 143(12) of the companies Act, 2013
the detail of which would need to be mentioned in the Director's Report.

SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

Company promote the positive workplace environment for everyone, free from harassment of any
nature. And no complaint was received by the Company from any employee during the financial year
2023-2024.

DETAIL OF Extra Ordinary General Meeting
There is one Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 01.12,2023 during the financiat year under
review. "
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COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD ISSUED BY ICSI
Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard issued by iCSI.

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
Not Applicable.
31. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Not applicable.
32. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS
Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (H
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
33. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
Adequate Internal Financial Control system and checks are in place commensurate with the size of
the company and nature of its business,
34. Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016
There is no proceeding which is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2018
during the financial yearunder review.
35. Details of Difference between Valuation Amount on One Time Settlement and Valuation while
availing Loan from Banks and Financial Institutions.
During the year under review there has been no one time settiement of Loans taken from Banks and
Financial Institutions.
36 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants,
various government authorities, employees and shareholders for their continued support extended to
your Company's activities during the year under review.
For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Q ,} ; - /\:(’PI} :
(5.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Fiace: New Delhi (DIN-00204504) (DIN-QC204805)

Date-31/08/2024 Director Director




SUN AERO LIMITED

CIN : U74899DL1393PLCOSST59
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

PHONE # (91 11) 41515250 e-mail; sunairhotels@qgmail.com

ANNEXURE-A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING
AND QUTGO for the year ended on 31st March, 2024.

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Qutgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Ruies, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(A} Conservation of Energy:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy. : Not Applicable
(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy. 1 Not Applicable
(i) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments. : Not Applicable

(B) Technology Absorption;
(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption. : Not Applicable
(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product : Not Applicable
development or import substitution.
(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years : Not Applicable
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year).
(a) the details of technology imported
{b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,
and the reasons thereof.
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. : Not Applicabte

{C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31%'March 2024  31%'March 2023
Earnings NIL NIL
Outgo / Expenses NIL NIL

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directars

e 31 o b
Sl L

(5.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
Dated : 31/08/2024 Director Director
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SUN AERO LIMITED

GIN : U74899DL1993PLCO55759
Regd. Off: A-7, FIRST FLOOR, GEETANJAL] ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI-110 017

PHONE # {91 11} 41515250 _e-mail; sunairhotels@gmail.com

ANNEXURE-B
FORM NO. AQC-2
{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014] for the year ended 31/03/2024.

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE QF PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS ENTERED
INTO BY THE COMPANY WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF
SECTION 188 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 INCLUDING CERTAIN ARMS LENGTH
TRANSACTION UNDER THIRD PROVISO THERETO

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at Arm’s Length basis:

SL No. Particulars Details
(@) Name (s} of the related party & nature of relationship : N.A
(b}  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
(¢} Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
{d) Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or transaction N.A

including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or N.A
transaction
(fy  Date of approval by the Board : N.A
{g)  Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A
(n)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General - N.A

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of confracts or arrangements or transaction at Arm’s Length basis:

Si. No. Particulars Details
{a)  Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship . N.A
(b}  Nature of contracts / arrangements / transaction _ N.A
{c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transaction : N.A
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction )

including the value, if any : NA
() Date of approval by the Board : N.A
{fy  Amount paid as advances, if any : N.A

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors

PN < j!,
ol el
(S.P.GUPTA) {(KAVEENGUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Director Director
Dated : 31/08/2024 ( DIN309204504) { DIN-00204605)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Sun Aero Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sun Aero Limited ("the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of Prefit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
referred as "the Financial Statements"). .

in our gpinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in confermity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the {Accounting Standards) Rutes 2021 {"AS")and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its Profit and cash flows far the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified
under section 143{10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics (CoE) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india (ICAI) together with the ethical reqguirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act an Rutes made thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibitities
in accordance with these reguirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of its report (hereinafter
called as "Board Report") which comprises various information’s required under section 134{3) of the Companies
Act 2033 but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statement does not cover the Board Repart and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibilfity is to read the Board Report and in
doing so, consider whether the Board Report is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge cbtained during the course of cur audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Board
Report, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5} of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the AS and other accounting principles ganeraliy
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
£
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to chtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erroy, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the operative
effectiveness of Company's internal corntrol systems.

c} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Cempany’s ability to continue as a going concern. f we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disciosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion, Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to centinue as a going concern.

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transacticns and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Matertality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements
may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluaiz the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit. )




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report includes a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
since in cur opinton and according to the information and explanations given to us, the said Order is
applicable to the Company and has been annexed as Annexure - A,

1.

-

As reguired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on cur audit we report that:

a)

g

We have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpases of our audit.

It our opinion proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and less and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
of the Company and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure — B”. Our report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial contrels with reference ¢ Financial Statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements-Refer Nate Na, 26 to the Standalone finrancial statements.

(i} The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

(iii) There have been no amounts reguired to be transferred, to the investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(iv) {a} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
heen advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

orovide any guarantee, security or the like on hehaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
AL




{b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any persen or entity, including foreign entity (Funding Parties),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us te believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b}, contain any
material misstatement.

(v) (a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
{b) The Company have not proposed any dividend for the vear.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its bocks of account for the financiai year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of aur audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3{1} of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicabie from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
vear ended March 31, 2024.

For Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

-

(Anil Sood)
Date : 31/08/2024 Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)

(i} In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment. There is no Intangible assets during the year ended
31/03/2024.

{a} The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment ina
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 1o the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant and eguipment were physicatly verified by
the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(c) The Company has not revaiued any of its property, plant and equipment {incfuding Right of Use assets)
during the year.

{d} According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have heen initiated during
the year or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024, for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rutes made thereunder.

(it} {a) The inventory includes Shares, Mutual Funds and otrher securities were physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. No discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records in the books of account.

(b} The Company has not availed /been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from Banks on the basis of security of current assets, therefore no requirement to file quarterly
returns/statements by the Company with such hanks. Hence, this clause is not applicable.

{ifi) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee(s) or security{ies} or
granted any leans or advances in the nature of loans Secured or Unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any parties hence clause 3{ili){a) to 3(iii} {f) is not applicable to the company.

{iv) In our opinion and according te the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

{v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

{vi} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 10 us, maintenance of cost records
has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section {1} of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

{vii) According to the informatien and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:
h




(a) The Company has generally been reguiar in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including goods
and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities except few instances of delay in deposits,

According to the information and explanations given, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
above statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024, for a period of more than six months from
the date they hecome pavable.

(b} There are dues in respect of value added tax, income tax and excise duty which have not been deposited
as at March 31, 2024, on account of dispute are given below: -

Period to Forum where dispute
Amount which the is pending
Name of the | Nature of (inRs amount
statute dues Crore) relates
Income-tax Income-
Act, 1961 tax 14.67 AY 1985-2000 | High Court, New Delhi

(viii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not surrendered or

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under
Income Tax Act  as income during the year.

(ix} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken

(x)

any term loans from banks/others during the year. Hence clause ix {2) to {c} is not applicable.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company does not have
Subsidiary/Associate/Joint venture.

{f} According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company does not have subsidiaries.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or pargally or
convertible debentures during the year under audit.

(xi} {a) To the best of our knowledge and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by

the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reperted during the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under section 143(12) of the Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014,
with the Central Government. '

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

{xii} The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report

an clauses 3(xii) (a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

'.‘fi .
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(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xivl  According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not require to have internal
audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with ruie 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{xv}In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence, requirement to report on cfause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) No such orders have been passed by any authority. Further the Company had made an application
to Reserve Bank of India for voluntary surrender of NBFC Certificate No. N-14-03086 dated 16/12/2005
issued by Reserve bank of India, Delhi, the application is under still under process and till date no Material
order has received in this regard. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi) {8), (b) and {¢) of the Order is not
appiicable.

{b) In our opinion, there is no care investment company within the Group {as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20186) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xvi} (d) of the Order
is not applicable.

{(xvii)  The Company has notincurred cash loss during the financial year under our audit and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, requirement
to report on clause 3{xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fali due.

(xx}{a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Sccial Responsibility (CSR} or other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx} (a) is not applicable for the vear.

{b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of Section 135(6} of the Act.

For Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. Q04985N

ad-
{Anil Sood)

Date 1 31/08/2024 Partner
Place: New Dethi =Lk Membership No. 83935




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of cur report
to the Members of Sun Aero Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sun Aero Limited ("the Company”} as
of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date. .
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established hy the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143({10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial contrels. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such contrels operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and cperating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or errorn.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements. P




Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of callusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
oceur and npt be detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
pracedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the interna!
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Anil Sood & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

o g
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{Anil Sood)
Date : 31/08/2024 Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939S
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SUN AERO LIMITED
CIN : U74899DL.1993PL.C055759

Reqd. Office Address : A-7, ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH! - 110 017

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in thousand ¥,_unless otherwise stated)

Sl Note 31/03/2024
No. Particulars No. Amount
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' Funds
(a8} Share capital 3 700.00
(b} Reserves and surpius 4 27774105 27844105
{(3) Current Liabilities
{a) Other current liabilities 5 121.00
TOTAL 278,562.05
. ASSBETS
(1} Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Eguipment
Tangible assets, not under leaste 6 1565,516.90
{b) Long-term loans and advances 7 92,530.76
{c) Deferred tax assets 8 377.48
{d) Other non-current assets 9 160.00  248,585.14
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 8,660.98
{b) Cash and cash equivalents 11 21,315.93 29,976.91
TOTAL 278,562.05
Significant Accounting Policies 2 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

AUDITORS' REPORT
As per our separate report of even date attached
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

[

{ANIL S00D)

Partner
Membership No. 83939

L4

Place: New Delhi
Dated : 31/08/2024

31/03/2023
Amount
7006.00
27781105 278311.05
121.00
278 43205
1566,196.06
98,103.29
4485 .45
175.00  254,820.80
20,161.80 :
3,348.36 23,511.26
278,432.05
Ca b
{(S.P.GUPTA)
Director

( DIN-00204504)

“>x')/'
(KAVEEN GUPTA)
Director
{DIN-00204605)




SUN AERC LIMITED
CiN : U74899DL.1993PLC055759
Regd. Office Address : A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH| - 110 017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

St Note 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No. Particulars No. Amount Amount
{.  Revenue

(@} Income from operations 12 12,893.77 45,163.52

(b) Other Income 13 1,149.23 907.13
. Total Revenue 04300 ot 005,
li. Expenses

{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 14 698.69 14,353.70

(c) Changes in inventeries of Stock-in-trade 15 11,500.92 27.591.51

(dy Employee benefit expenses 16 199.80 953.32

(e} Other expenses 17 861.00 384.05

{f)y Finance costs 18 1.10 QG

{g) Depreciation 19 679.18 679.16
IV. Total Expenses 13,840.68 43,971.75
V. Profit/ {loss) hefore tax {1 - 1V) 102.33 2.128.90
VL. Tax expense

(a) Currenttax 00 227.47

{b) Earlier years' fax -96.63 2477

(c) Deferred Tax 68.97 -27.66 133.50 38574
VIi. Profit / (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (V - V) 130.00 1,743.16
VHI Earnings per equity share {(EPS) 20 {in Rs.) {In Rs.)

{a) Basic 1.86 2490

(b Diluted 1.86 24 .90
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

AUDITORS' REPORT L
As per our separate report of even date attached St ) -
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA}
Chartered Accountants Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated ; 31/08/2024

(Al amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

Firm Regn. No.004985N

o) fe
{ANIL SO0
Partner

Membership No. 83938

Dy

( DIN-00204504)

e /
{KAVEEN GUPTA}
Director
(DIN-0Q2048045)




SUN AERO LIMITED
Regd. Office Address : A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in thousand %, unless otherwise stated)

Sl. 310312024 31/03/2023
No. Particulars Amount Amount

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit /(loss) before tax and after prior period expenses 102.33 2,128.90
Operating (loss) before working capital changes 102.33 2,128.90
- Depreciation £879.16 679.18
- Interest Paid 1.10 -
Movement in working capital:

- (increase) / decrease in inventories 11,500.92 27,591.51
- (Increase) / decrease in loans and advances 557253 5,299.73
- (Increase) / decrease in other Non Current Assats 15.00 -
Cash (used in) operations 17.8671.04 35,699.30
Direct taxes (paid) 96.63 -252.24
Net cash (used in) operating activities {A) 17,967.68 35,447.06

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

- Land Purchase - -40,000.00
- Sale of Investment - 5,608.08
Net cash {used in) investing activities (B) - -34,991.95

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Interest paid -1.10 ~
Net cash from financing activities (C) -1.10 -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) 17,966.58 455,12
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 3,349.36 2,894 24
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {E) 21,315.93 3,349.36
Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D) 17,966.58 455.12
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Cash in hand 658.25 £668.21
With Banks - On current accounts 20,657.68 2,681.15

21,315.93 3,349.36

Significant Accounting Policies: Note No, 2

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our separate report of even date attached )‘)f
For ANIL SO0D & ASSQCIATES {S.P.GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Director
Firm Regn. No.004885N { DIN-0G204504)
<df - S
(ANIL SOOD) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Delhi Partner Director

Dated : 31/08/2024 Membership No. 83939 {DIN-00204605)
¥y




SUN AERO LIMITED
Regd. Office Address : A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE NEW DELH| - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

a} The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP} to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as applicable.

b} The financial statements have ben prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention basis.
The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the previous year.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Use of Estimates :
The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and labilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reperting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the period in which the resuits are known / materialised.

B. Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment;
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

(i} Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, ¥ any. All costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised.

(iiy Land is stated at original cost of acguisition.

{iiy Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Shest.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

D) Leased Assets:
() Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference $o lease terms and other considerations.
(i) Finance Leases: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease
rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as
lease liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease liability
and the interest component is charged to the statement of profit and Ioss,

(lii) However, rentals referred to in (i) or (i) above and the interest component referred 1o in {ily above
pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized,

{iv) All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment
in the lease. initial direct costs in respect of lease are expensed in tiie year in which such costs
are incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the
lease o the net investment,

C. Intangible Assets & Amortisation:
Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
"Intangible Assets" and are amortised over the useful life of the underiying assets as follows:
a) Leasehold jand: over the period of lease.
b) tump sum fees for technical know-how: aver a period of six years in case of foreign technology and
three years in case of indigenous technology.

Q§.\ -
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Gains or iosses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization:

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Piant and Equipments is calculated on Straight Line Method
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-ll of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Plant and
Equipmenis as specified in Part 'C’, while fixing the residual values of the Property, Plant and
Equipments at 8% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full pericd in the year
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year.

b}y Intangible Properly, Plant and Equipments are amortized on 2 straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. i there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization
period and methed are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However, no amortization
expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year.

Impairment of Tangible and intangible Assets:

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed # there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs : .

Barrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantiat period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged o revenue in the period in
which they are incurred.

Valuation of Investment;

a) Trade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests.
Investments are either classified as current or fong-term based on Management's intention at the time
of purchase.

b) Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment

¢} Long term investments are acrried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investment.

d) Cost for gverseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment fransiated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment. )

Investment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cepreciation on building component of investment property is calcuiated on a Straight Line Method basis
using the rates and useful lives prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired
and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties sold
during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds
is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Vaijuation of Inventory:
Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value wherever applicable, Cost is determined on
FIFO basis.
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J. Revenue Recognition:
All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis, Revenue in respect of
msurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably certain that the
ultimate collection will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subseduent years
are daclared in the balance sheet as deferred revenue expenses and amortised over the pericd in which
the benefit is expected to accrue.

K. Foreign Currency Transactions:

a) In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate”
as prescribed by the ICAl, year-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the year-
end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated
in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction. However,
transactions completed during the year are adjusted on actual basis.

b} In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paic on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

¢} Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settiement or on transiation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate t¢ acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrving cost of such assets.

@) UCifference in outstanding value of term loan in foreign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account calied ‘Exchange Difference
(FC Laon) Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan.

f) Difference in foreign exchange forward contracts is recognised as income / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same propertionately over the effective life of the contract.

L. Emplovee Benefits :

a} Al short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability (accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amaunt afready paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset (prepaid expense).

by Cempany's contribufion to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is chargad to the
statement of profit and loss.

¢)  Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligaticn and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation
on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year,

d) Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit methed.

@) Acluarial gains/losses are immaediately taken io the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

fy Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obligation.

M. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from 'timing differences’ between taxable and accounting
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there
is & virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

N. Provisigns, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets !

a) Provisions are recognised for ligbilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
{iy the Company has & present obligation as a result of a past event,
{iy a probabie outflow of resources is expected to setile the obligation, and
{lif) the amount of abligation can reliably be estimated,
Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will uitimately be received.

g
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o) Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of;
(i) a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probabie that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation,
(i} a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
(i) @ possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of autflow of rasources is not
remote.
¢} Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
d) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period ltems : )
Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statemant of profit and loss for the vear, keeping in view
their materiality and the past methed of accounting.

. Exceptional and Extra-ordinary ltems:

Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Company during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARGCH, 2024 (Contd...)
[All amounts n thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (PY Rs. 10/-) each 1,000,000 10,000.00 1,000,000 10,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fuily paid-up 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Total 70,080 700.00 7G,0C0 700,00

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

31/03/12024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 70,000 700.00 70,000 700.00

Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has cnly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupses. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

During the year ended 31% March, 2024 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distribution to equity
shareholders was Rs. Nil {PY Rs. Nii}.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be antitied to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion t¢ the number of
equity shares held by the sharehoiders,

Equity Shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries / assaciates:

3103712024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
Mis Sunair Hotels Limited, the holding company
70,000 {PY 70,000} equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up 700.00 700.C0

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

3110312024 31/03/2023
No. of No. of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

M/s Sunair Hotels Limited, holding company 70,000 100 70,000 100
{3500 shares are teing held in the names of Six

nominees of Sunair Hotels Limited and the balance

shares are held in the name of Sunair Hotels Limited)

Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

31/03/2024 3110312023
No. of No, of
Shares % of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding

Name of the shareholder

Sunair Hotels Limited 70,000 100% 70,060 100%

(3500 shares are being held in the names of Six

ncminees of Sunair Hotels Limited and the balance

shares are held in the name of Sunair Hoteis Limited)
Total 70,000 100% 70,000 100%

2




4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

Surplus / {deficif} in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance

Add

Closing Balance

5. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

a.
b,

Audit fee payable
TDS Payable

Net Profit / {Net Loss) for the current year

Total

31/03/2024
Amount

277.611.05
130.00
277,741,056

277,741,050

108.80
12,10
121.00

3118312022
Amount

275 867.80
1,743.18
©277.611.05

277,611,053

————————— bt

108.90
12.10
121.00
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SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
{All amaunts in thousand &,_unless otherwise stated)

7.

10.

11,

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

A, Capital Advances
a. Unsecured, considered good

B. Others
a, Unsecured, considerad good
-Income Tax Refundable
-G5T input Available

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Total

31/03/2024
Amount

84,223.16

1,107.60

7,200.00

926307

31/03/2023
Amount

89,223.186

1,680.13
7,200.00

98,103.29

In line with the method recomimended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on income"
there were no deferred tax as on as on 1st Aprii, 2023 and 31st March, 2024, However components of
deferrad tax liabilities as on those dates are given as under;

01/04/2023  For the Year Reversing 31/03/2024
A, Deferred Tax Assets
Depreciation 64.32 - 12.88 51.43
Business Loss off 56.08 - 56.08 -
Unabscrbed Depraciation off 326.05 - - 326.05
Total 448 45 - 68.97 377.48
Net Deferred Tax Assets 446.45 - -68.97 377.48
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A, Staff Advance 160.00 175.00
Total 160.00 17500
INVENTORIES
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. SBtock-in-trade {Valued at Cost or NRV whichever is Less)
- Mutual Fund Units 8,660.98 20,161.90
Total (A} 8,660.98 20,161.90
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31/0312024 3110312023
Amount Amount
a. Balances with banks
In current accounts with Scheduled Banks 20,657.68 2,681.15
(There are no earmarked balances,
margin money, security  against
borrowings, guarantees and cther
. Cash on hand 658.25 668.21

21,315.93

33493




SUN AERQ LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

12. INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

13.

14.

15.

18.

31/03/2024
Amount
A. Sale of Products
Traded Goods 12,883.77
income from Gperations (Gross) 12,893.77
Less: Excise Duty -
Income from Operations {(Net) Total 12,893.77
Details of Goods Sold
a. Shares & Mutual Funds 12,893.77
12,883.77
12,893.77
OTHER INCOME
31/03/2024
Amount
A. Interest Income
- Interest income 38.11
- Interest on IT Refund 26.77
B. Profit on PMS 1,082.02
C. Dividend From Mutual Fund 2.34
D. Misc Income -
Total 1,149.23
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
31/03/2024
Amount
-Mutual Funds 598.69
Total 698.69

(INCREASE) / DECREASFE IN INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS

31/03/2023
Amount

45,193.52

45,193.52

45,183.52

45,183.52

45,193.52

45,193.52

31/03/2023
Amount

1.90
905.23

.00
807.13

31/03/12023
Amount

14,353.70

14,353,70

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 {iIncrease}/
Amount Amount Decrease
3110312024
Inventories at the end of the year
a. Mutual Funds 8,660.98 20,161.90 11,500.92
8,660.98 20,161,90 11,500.92
Inventories at the beginning of the year 31/03/2023
a. Mutual Funds 20,161.90 47,753 .41 27.591.51
20,161.80 47,753.41 27.691.51
(Increase} / Decrease in Inventories -11,500.92 27,591.51
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. Salaries, wages and bonus 183.60 937.20
B. Staff Welfare Expenses 16.20 16.12
Total 199.80 953.32




SUN AERQ LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315t MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

17.

18.

19.

20,

OTHER EXPENSES

Travelling & Conveyance

Communication Cost

Printing & Stationery

Payment to Auditors

ROC Filing Fees .
Legal & Professional

Vehicle Running & Maintenance Charges

Management Feas

Misc. Expenses

TIoMmoo®mr

Total

Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:

Statutory Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Total

FINANCE COST

a. Interest Paid on TDS
Total

BEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Asgsets
Total

EARNING PER SHARE {EPS)

Total operations for the year

Profit / (loss} after tax

Less: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares
Net profit / (less) for calculation of Basic EPS

Net profit as above

Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares

Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares
Net profit f (foss) for calculation of Diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equily shares in calculating Basic EPS
Effect of dilution:

Convertible preference shares {numbers)

Convertible bonds (numbers)

Stack option granted under ESOP

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS

(a) Basic
(b) Diluted ey

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
14.13 15.40
16.24 16.04
15.82 15.48
121.C0 121.00
32.37 30.01
450.00 -
88.00 171.84
110.69 -
23.05 24.29
861.00 394.05
50.50 60.50
50.50 60.50
121.00 121.00
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amourt
678.16 679.16
679,16 679.16
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
130.00 1,743.16
130.00 1,743.18
130.00 1,743.16
130.00 1,743.16
70,000 70,000
70,000 70,000
1.86 24.90
1.86 24.90




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}
{All amounts in thousand ¥,_unless otherwise stated)

21. Related Party Disclosure
Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on “Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given as under in respect of
related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
a} Related parties and their relationshp
1. Holding Company . Sunair Hotels Limited

-+

2. Key Management Personnel

-Mr. 5. P. Gupta . Director
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta : Director
- Mr. Vipul Gupta . Director

3. Enterprises over which significant influence excercised
by Key Management Personnel
- Pushpanjali Trexim (P} Ltd. S Mr 8.P.Gupta and Mr Vipul Gupta Directors
& Shareholders
b) Transactions with the related parties

Enterprises over which Key
significant influence Management
exercised by Personnel
Key Management {including
Personnel relatives) Total
a) Balance outstanding on March 31, 2024
Enterprises over which Key
significant influence  Management
exercised by Personne!
Key Management {including
Personnel refatives) Totai
Particulars
Advances given 21,538.16 Nil 21,638.16
(P.Y. 21,538.16) (P.Y. Nil) {P.Y. 21,538.16)

22. Debts due by firms or companies in which directors are interested - Rs. NiL (PY Rs. NIL). Maximum
amount outstanding at any time during the year Rs. NIL {PY Rs. NIL).

23. Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits
No provision has been made in the accounts in respect of future payments of gratulty as per the
payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

24. EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY ITEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary items of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Ni). Hence no
disclosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
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SUN AEROC LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

25, Dues tg Micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

In terms of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 719{e}, the company had
requested its varicus suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 20086, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and confirmation regards
them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmad details and information from the
said parties the outstanding on account purchase made/services obtained from such suppliers including the
disputed amounts due to them, were ascertained and refiected in the financials as due to Micro & Small
Enterprises. The details in respect of the pariies that could be identified as Micro and Small enterprises as
per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information available with the management are given below:

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount

i The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year.
-Principal amount due to micro and smali enterprises - -
-Interest due on above - -

{i} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 aleng with the amounis of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

{iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year} but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act 2008, - -

{iv) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the - -

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
(i) Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Nil N
B. Guarantees Nit Nil
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks Nif Nil
0. Tax demand disputed in appeals 146,651.40 146,651.40
* Accrued interest, if any
(il Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital accounts and Nil Nil
B. Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid i Nil
C. Other commitments N Nil




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)

{Alf amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

27. Segment Reporting

The business segments of the Company have been identified in terms of the Accounting Standard AS-17

on

“Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the

organisational structure and different risk and return involved in those segments. Accordingly, the
reporiable business segments of the company are as under:

a)
b)

Investment Business
Real Estate i

The acceunting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the following additicnal policies of
the Company, However, the foliowing additional policies have been adopted for Segment Reporting:

a)

n)

Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating
business aclivities of the segment. However, revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as
a whole and cannot be allocated to a particlar segment on reasonable basis are disclosed separately
as "unallocable".
Segment assets and [abilities resulting from the operating activities of a segment or directly
atlributable / allocable to the segment on a reasonable basis are so allocated. -
Portfolio Unallocahble
Manageme Real Estate {(Amount} Total Amount

Particulars

Segment Revenue
- Revenue 14,016.23 - 26.77 14,043.00

Net Sales / Income from Operations (A) 14,016.23 - 26.77 14,043.00

Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses

-Cperating / Administration Expenses 12,198.81 - 1,739.96 13,261.51

B) 12,199.61 - 1,739.98 13,261.51
Segment Result A-B 1,816.62 - -1,713.19 781.49
Less: Depreciation 679.16
Profit before Taxation 102.33
Less: Tax Expense for the year -27.66
Profit after Taxation 130.00

Segment Assets (inciuding Misc.

expenditure and debit balance of Profit
& Loss Alg) 8,660.98 - 269,901.07 278,562.05

Segment Liabilities ({including long
term liabilities) . - - -

Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets - 110,111.50 45,405,40 155,616.90
Total Depreciation on fixed assets - - 678.16 679.16

The business segments of the Company, viz., Investment and Real Estate are located at one
gecgraphical pface only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the Company.




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand T unlass otherwise stated)

28. Ratio
As at As at
. Measure 31 31 % .
S. No Particulars s March March |Variance Reason for variance
2024 2023
1 |Current Ratio Times 247.74 | 194.31 28%|The ratio is increased during the current year due
to increased in the value of current assets during
. (the year as compared to previous year.
< {Debt-Equity Ratio Times N.A, NLA. NA - INA
3 {Debt service coverage]Times NLA. N.A. NA  INA
ratio
4 |Return on equity ratio Percenta G.00 0.01 -93%|The ratio is decreased during the currgnt year
ge due to decrease in the profit earned during the
year as compared to previous year.

5 |lnventory turnover ratio  |Times 0.85 1.24 -31%|This ratio has decreased due to increase in the
cost of goods sold during the year. This decrease
is in consistent with the decrease in the revenue
earned during the year.

6 |[Trade receivables|Times N.A N.A NA NA

turnover ratio

7 |Trade payabies turnover|Times NLA N.A NA NA

ratio

8 INet capital turnover ratic [Times 0.43 1.93 -78%|The ratio is decreased during the current year
due to decrease in the net profit during the year
as compared 1o previous year.

g |Net profit ratio Percenta 0.01 0.04 -74%iThe ratio is decreased during the current year

ge due to decrease in the net profit during the year
as compared to previous year.

10 [Return on capitaliPercenta 0.00 .01 -95%The ratio is decreased during the current year

employed ge due to decrease in the net profit during the year
as compared to previous year.

11 {Return on investment Percenta | NLA N.A N.AL N.A.

ge
S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 iCurrent ratio Current agsets Current liabilities

2 {Debt-equity ratio Total debt = fong term Shargholder's equity

3 Debt service coverage|Earning for debt service = Net{Debt service = interest payments + principal repayments

ratio profit before taxes + non-cash

4 |Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes — Average shareholder's equity

5 linventory turnover ratio [Cost of goods sold Average inventory = (Opening + closing bafance / 2)

6 Trade receivablesiNet credit sales Average accounts receivables

turnover ratio

7 Trade payables turnoveriNet credit purchases Average trade payables

ratic

8 Net capital turnover ratio {Net sales Average working capitat (i.e. total current assets less total

current liabilities)

9 |Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return on capital|Earning before interest and|Capital employed = Tangible net worth + total debt +

employed taxes (EBIT) deferred tax liability

11 {Return on investment Income generated from Time weighted average investments




SUN AERO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

29. MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments to Schedule iii disclosures which are not
applicable:

(iy Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of compnay - No propertiy are held by the
company.

(i) Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not applicable as there are no proceedings which have
been initiated or pending against the company for hoiding ‘any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Willfull defaulter ~ 'The Company has not been declared as wilfui defaulter by any bank or financial
institutions.

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies - 'The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 580 of Companies Act, 1956
and do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

(v) Compiiance with number of layers of companies - 'The Company has complied with the number of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
lLayers) Ruies, 2017.

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - 'The Company has not been approved any Scheme
of Arrangements by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) Details of crypto currency or Virtual currency - 'The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto
currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

30. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Indian thousand rupees.

31. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous year figures have been regrouped/recast wherever considered necessary.

For ANIL SO0D & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA}
Chartered Accountanis Director
Firm Regn. No.004885N { DIN-00204504)
(ANIL SC0OD) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Place: New Dethi Partner Director
Dated . 31/08/2024 Membership No. 83939 (DIN-00204605)




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Miembers of Sunair Hotels Limited
Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s Sunair Hotels Limited {hereinafter
referrad to as the ‘Holding Company”} and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to
as “the Group”), which comprise the Consofidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consclidated Statement
of Profit and Loss and tha Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
conselidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as
"the consolidated financial statements”). ‘

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {Act) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021("AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated statement of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, of their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs) specified under section 143 {10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditer’s Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of E£thics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

information Gther than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the consolidated Financial $tatements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this cther
information, we are required to report that fact, we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with

the accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included




in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
frregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
efither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial $tatements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the consotidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accardance with SAs wiil always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

al Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may irvolve cotlusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controis relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinien on whether the Company has adequate internal financiaf controis system in place and
the operative effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based cn the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e} Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consclidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. (0%




f) Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the
financial consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
Firancial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and'(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reqguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasenably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of india in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, based on cur audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the
subsidiary incorporated in India we give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph
3{xxi) of the Order.

2) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of our krowledge and
helief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consoiidated financial statements.

b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financiat statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consclidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our cpinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.
Y8




h)

Cn the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2024 taken cn record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the said Group companies is
disquatified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financiai controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure-B which is based on the
auditor’s reports of the Company and its subsidiary. Our report expresses an unmaodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financiai controis over financial reporting of those
companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directars during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors} Ruies, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its Consolidated
financial position of Group in respect of claims and demands which are being contested as mentioned
in Refer Note 36 and Note 40,

(i) the Group did not have any long-term contracts inciuding derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

{iii) there were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in india during the year ended 31st,
WMarch, 2024,

(iv} {8} The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented
to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or in kind of
funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (Intermediaries), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shali, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoaver by or on hehalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary (Uimate Beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
incarporated in india, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented
to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary respectively, that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received hy the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any other person or entity, including foreign entity
{Funding Parties}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
Vo




(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause {i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b), contain any material
misstatement.

(v} (a) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

{b) The Company have not propesed any dividend for the year.

{vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the holding Company and subsidiary have used
accounting software for maintaining its bocks of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log} facility and the same has cperated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Ruie 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

FOR ANIL SCOD & ASSQOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. Q04985N

e
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$5-316, Greater Kailash-1

New Delhi-110 048 (ANIL SO0D)
Date: 03/09/2024 Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939




ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of M/s Sunair Hotels Limited Members of even date)

In Terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounis
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

There has been no such qualifications or adverse remarks by any auditor in their respective reports, hence the
aforesaid clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in the case of the Company.

There has been no such qualifications or adverse remarks by any auditor in their respective reports, hence the
aforesaid clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in the case of the Company.

For ANIL SCOD 8 ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

oo
e
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5-316, Greater Kailash-1 -
New Delhi -110 048 {ANIL $O0D)
Date: 03/08/2024 Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No. 83939




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Einancial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of M/s Sunair Hotels Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which is its subsidiary company, as of that date. In our opinion,
the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which is its subsidiary company have, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controis with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financiai statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential
camponents of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“‘ICAF).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
reguired under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial centrols with reference to the
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted cur audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”} and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, bothissued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note reqlire
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all materia} respects.

Cur audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obiained by the other auditors of the

relevant subsidiary company in terms of their report is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.
WA




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company’s internal
financial control with reference to consalidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are* being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internaf financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004985N

'

§-316, Greater Kailash-1 Sl

New Dethi -110 048 (ANIL SCOD)
Date: 03/09/2024 Partner

Place: New Delhi Membership No, 83939




e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PL.CO0B495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
Website- www.hotelmetdethi.com

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

Sl
No, Particulars

. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1} Sharehotders' Funds
(a) Share capital
(0) Reserves and surpius

{2) Non-current Liabilities
(a} Deferred tax liabilities {net)
(b} Other long-term liabilities
(¢} Long-term provisions

(3} Current Liabilities
{a} Trade payables
(b} Other Current Liabilities
(c) Short-term provisions
TOTAL

It ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(i} Tangibie assets

{b) Non-current investments
Deferred Tax Asset (net)

(c) Long-term loans and advances

{d) Other non-current assets

{2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(¢} Cash and bank balances
() Short-term loans and advances
{e) Other current assets
TOTAL

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis.

AUDITORS' REPORT

As per our report of even date
For ANIL SOCD & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.004985N

-

AS AT AS AT
Note 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No. Amaunt Amount

3 397.500.00 397,500.00

4 1,616,744 .55 2,014,244 .55 1,5663,082.44 1051482 44

5 157 .854.66 158,169.02

6 89,420.00 90.415.00

7 26,501.86 273,866.52 16.552.10 265,136.12

8 26,029.31 24 823.93

9 104,185.57 g97.110.64

10 10,660.90 140,876.78 13,418.40 135,352,897
2,428,987.85 2,351,971.53

11 1,365,186.27 1,373,778.01

12 £692,010.30 610,266.18

13 377.48 445.45

14 139,661.78 121,432.28

15 12,913.36 844 962.89 1292836 745,073.27

16 82,139.44 92.709.22

17 28.525.14 31,788.68

18 38,051.75 44 270.79

19 57.863.47 53,566.65

20 11,258.82 218,838.68 10,784.91 23312025
2.428,987.85 2.351.971.53

2 - -

o) |- o[-
(S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPRTA)

Chairman Executive Director

mf—'? f-
(ANIL SOCD)

Partner

Place-New Delhi
Dated; 03/09/2024

Membership No, 83938

s

(DIN-00204504)

Chief Financial Officer
M. No.-FCS 8984

(DIN-G0204605)

Cofl - e

Ty /

(VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Company Secretary

{M No. A-26116)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL1977PLC008495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELH} - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

(Al amounts in thousand ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Sl Note 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No Particulars No. Amount Amount
1. Revenue
{(2) income from operations 21 - 674,301.26 §71,290.25
{b} Other Income 22 26,902.20 33,886.77
I, Total Revenue 701,203.46 705.177.02
Ill. Expenses
{a} Cost of materials consumed 23 48,718.06 38,543.38
(b) Purchase of Stock 24 698.69 14,3563.70
{c) Change in Inventory 25 11,500.92 27,5915
{d) Cost of utilities and hospitality services 26 1,098.15 903.41
(e) Employee benefit expenses 27 135,419.14 107,943.95
(f) Other expenses 28 391,756.24 341,223.15
(g) Finance costs 29 G2.73 $9.30
(h) Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 34,590.96 35,454 85
{i} Expenditure on CSR Activity 31 745.30 806.20
IV. Total Expenses 624.690.18 566,879.55
V. Profit/ (loss) before exceptional item and tax (li - IV) 7861328 138,297 .47
l.ess : Exceptional item - -
V1. Profit / (loss) before tax {IV - V) 76.613.28 138,297.47
Vil. Tax expense/(saving)
{a) Current tax 8,387.78 18,212.63
(b} Deferred tax -245.39 18,503.77
{c) Earlier Years Taxes 5708.79 13,851.18 24.77 36,741.18
VIl Profit / (loss) for the year (V - VI) 62,762.11 101,556.29
IX. Prior period adjustments - -
X. Profit! (loss) transferred to Balance Sheet (Vi) - VHI) 62,762.11 101,556.29
X1, Earnings per equity share (EPS) 32
(a) Basic 1.58 2.55
(b) Diluted 1.58 2.55
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
AUDITORS' REPORT L
As per our repori of even date L} ) G
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES {5.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA)
Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Director
Firm Regn. No.004985N (DIN-00204504) (DIN-00204605)
) Cef C})
{ANIL SCOD} {VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place-New Dethi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Dated: 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83938 M.No.-FCS 8984

I {

(M No. A-26116)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

CiN: U74899DL1977PLCQ08495

REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELMI - 110 017
Website- www.hotelmetdelhi.com

e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com

Sk

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in thousand ¥_unless otherwise stated)

No. Particulars

A,

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit /{loss) before tax and after prior period expenses

Adiustments for;

- Interest Income

- Dividend Received

- Depreciation

- Profit {Loss) on sale of Assets

Operating (loss) before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

-(Increase) / Decrease in inventories

-(Increase) / Decrease in Debtors

-(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances
-{Increase) / Decrease in Other Current assets
-(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current assets
-(Increase) / Decrease in Long-term loans and advances
-Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

-Increase / {Decrease) in Other long-term labilities
-Increase / (Decrease) in Long-term provisions
-Increase / (Decrease) in Sundry Liabilities

-tncrease / (Decrease) in Other Provisions

Cash (used in) operations

Direct taxes {paid)

Net cash {used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sale of Assets

Dividend received

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income

Increase / (Repayment) of Term Loan

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(A)

(8)

(C)

(D)
(E)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E-D}

N

31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Amount Amount
70,904.49 125,185.82
-86.24 -42 14
-4,93 -2.30
34,580.96 35,454.85
-1,193.15 -963.51
104,211.13 159,642.81
10,569.79 25,590.86
2,263.55 -15,584.,71
-4,296.82 25,373.95
-473.98 -2,943.31%
156.00 2,598.02
-18,229.48 10,883.06
1,205.38 9,653.02
-985.00 -716.00
10,639.76 674.79
7,075.94 13,478.18
-2,757 .51 4,856,58
108,627.76 233,507.26
8,387.78 18,212.63
100,239.98 215,294 .62
-81,744.11 -137,348.57
-26,238.09 -70,371.83
1,432.02 1,205.23
4,93 2.30
-108,545.25 -206,510.86
86.24 42.14
86.24 42.14
-6,219.04 8,825.90
44,270.79 35,444.89
38,051.75 44 270,79
-6,219.04 8,825.90




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
CIN: U74898DL1977F1.C008495
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJAL! ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017
e-mail: sunairhotels@gmail.com Website- www.hotelmetdethi.com

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34st MARCH, 2024
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

51 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
No. Particulars . Amount Amount
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3110312024 31/03/2023
Cash in Hand 3,461.68 3,216.29
FDRs with Banks 521.37 -
Balances with Banks 34,068.71 41,054.48
38,051.75 44,270.79

Significant Accounting Policies: Note No. 2

AUDITORS' REPCRT : L
As per our report of even date G| - Sl
For ANIL SOOD & ASSOCIATES (S.P.GUPTA) (KAVEEN GUPTA}

Chartered Accountants Chairman Executive Directar
Firm Regn. No.Q04985N (DIN-0G204504) (DIN-00204605)
Sl o) ol
(ANIL SOOD}) (VIPIN JAIN) (NEHA RAJPUT)
Place-New Delhi Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Dated: 03/09/2024 Membership No. 83939 M.No.-FCS 8984 (M. Ne. A-26116)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
REGD OFFICE: A-7, Ist FLOOR, GEETANJALI ENCLAVE, NEW DELHI - 110 017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTIONS

ay

0}

The Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules 2021 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Agt, 2013 {"the 2013 Act") as applicable.

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention Pasis. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

C.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of Consolidated financiai statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and
estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materiaiised.

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment:
a) Own Property, Plant and Equipment:

() Tangible Property, Piant and Equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Al costs, including
expenditures and levies directly attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustmentis arising from exchangse
rate variations attributable to the Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalised,

(i Land is stated at original cost of acquisition.

(i) Capital work-in-progress is stated at amount spent upto the date of Balance Sheet.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

b) Leased Assets:
(i Operating Leases: Rentals are expensed with reference {0 lease terms and other considerations.
(i) Finance Leases; The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease
rentals is capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipments with corresponding amount shown as
lease liability. The principat component in the lease rental is adjusted against the iease liability and
the interest corponent is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

(i) However, rentals referred to in (i) or {ii) above and the interest component referred te in (i) above
pertaining to the period upto the date of commissioning of the assets are capitalized.

(ivy All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount egual to net investment in
the [ease. Initial direct costs in respect of iease are expensed in the year in which such cosis are
incurred. Income from lease assets is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease
to the net investment.

Intangible Assets & Amortisation:

Intangible Assets are recognised as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS-26) on
"Intangible Assets" and are amortised over the useful jife of the underlying assets as follows:

a) Leasehold land: over the pericd of lease.

by Lump sum fees for technical know-how: over a period of six years in case of foreign technalogy and
three years in case of indigenous technology.

ha




D2 :
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipments are measured as thel
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognized |
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 3

. Depreciation and amortization: |

a) Depreciation on tangible Property, Plant and Equipments is calculated on Straight Line Method|
pursuant to the requirements of Schedule-lt of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from April 01,
2014, by using the rates prescribed therein over the estimated useful lives of the Property, Plant and |
Lguipments as specified in Part 'C', while fixing the residual values of the Praperty, Plant and |
Equipments at 5% of their original cost, in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year|
and on prorata basis for assets acquired & put to use during the year. '

) Intangible Property, Plant and Equipments are amortized on a siraight-line basis over the estimated |
useful economic life in respect of assets which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis |
for assets acquired / recognized and put to use during the year. If there is a significant change from
previous estimates in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amoriization period _
and method are changed accordingly to reflect the changed pattern. However, no amortization
expense is provided on intangible assets derecognized during the year,

impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets; |
An asset is itreated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverabie value. An |
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverablie amount.

Borrowing Costs : |
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of gualifying assets are capitalised
as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged te revenue in the period in

which they are incurred. :

. Valuation of Investment:
ay Yrade investments are the investments made to enhance the Company's business interests. |
Investments are either classified as current or fong-term based on Management's intention at the time
of purchase. ':
by Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair market value of each investment |
individually. ’
c) Long term investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any diminution, other |
than temporary, in the carrying value of each investrment,
d) Cost for overseas investments comprises the Indian Rupee value of the consideration paid for the
investment transiated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of investment. 3

. Investment Property: :
An investment in fand or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantially for use by, or in the |
operations of, the Company, is classified as an investment property. Investment properties are stated at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a Straight Line Method hasis
using the rates and usefu! lives prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of such
investment properties which are used for full period in the year, and on prorata basis for assets acquired
and put to use during the year. However, no depreciation is provided on the investment properties scld 3
during the year, but on disposal, the difference between its carrying amount and the net disposal proceeds j
is charged or credited to the statement of profit and lgss. 1

Valuaticn of Inventory: _
Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net reatisable value wherever applicable. Cost is determined on
weighted average basis.

R




3
J. Revenue Recognition:
All incomes and expenses are accounted for on accrual and prudent basis. Revenue in respect of
insurance / other claims, interest, commission, etc. is recognised only when it is reasonably certain that the

ultimate collecticn will be made. Expenses incurred for which benefit will accrue in the subsequent years
dre desidred In the balanee shest ds deferred ravenus Bxpaness and amorisad ovar the peried i whiek

the benefit is expected to accrue.

K. Foreign Currency Transactions:

a} In accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-11 on "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate”
as prescribed by the ICAl, vear-end balance of foreign currency transactions is translated at the year-
end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the respective accounts. Transactions denominated
in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rate prévai}ing at the time of transaction. However,
transactions completed during the year are adiusted on actual basis.

by In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year
end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference and the premium
paid on forward contracts is recognized over the iife of the contract,

¢} Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

d) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlemant or on translation is |
recognised in the statement of profit and loss except in cases where they relate to acquisition of
Property, Plant and Equipments, in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

e} Difference in outstanding value of term ioan in foraign currency as at the year end vis-a-vis the date of
obtaining loan is recorded in the books of account in a separate account called 'Exchange Difference
(FC Loan)" Account to be approprited at the conclusion of the said term loan,

f} Difference in foreign exchange forward contracis is reccgnised as ingome / loss in the books of
account by spreading the same proportionately over the effective life of the contract,

L. Emplovee Benefits :

a) All short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by the
employees during the year are recognised, at the undiscounted amount, as liability (accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid. Where the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of the benefits, such excess is recognised as an asset {prepaid expense).

b} Company's contribution to Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution plan, is charged to the
statement of profit and loss.

¢) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial vaiuation
on projected unit credit methed made at the end of each financial year. ‘

d} Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial :
valuation is done as per projected unit method.

e) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of prefit and foss and are not deferred.

f) Termination benefits are recognised as a liability immediately on incurrence of any such obiligation.

M. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax :
Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from timing differences’ between taxable and accounting |
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there
fs a virtual certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

N. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :
a) Provisions are recognised for Habilities that can only be measured by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if;
() the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
(i) a probable outflow of resources is expected to setle the obligation, and
(i} the amount of obligation can reliably be estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognised only
when it is virtuafly certain that the reimbursement will ultimately be received.

(s




by Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of:
{iy a present obligation arising on past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be reguired to settle the obligation,
{iiy a present obligation, when no reliable estimate is possible, and
{iii} a possible obliation arising from past events, where the probability of outfiow of resources is not
remote.
¢} Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
dy Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

. Prior Period ltems : .
Prior Period items are disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss for the year, keeping in view
their materiality and the past method of accounting.

Exceptional and Extra-ordinary ltems:
Exceptional and extra-ordinary items of the Cempany during the period are disclosed separately in the
statement of profit and loss for the year, as part of net profit.




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd.
{All amounts in thousand , unless otherwise stated)

3. SHARE CAPITAL

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised and issued share capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 40,000,000 400,000.00 40,000,000 400,000.00

Subscribed and paid-up share capital:

Equity shares of Re. 10/- each fully paid-up 39,750,000 1397,500.00 39,750,000 397,500.00
Total 39,750,000 397,500,060 38,750,000 397,500.00

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 39,750,000 397,500.00 39,750,000 397,500.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 39,750,000 397,500.00 38,750,000 387,500.00

Terms [ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31st March, 2024 the amount of per share dividend recognized as distributions to
equity shareholders was Rs. Nil {PY Rs. Nil.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

As on date As on date
No. of No. of
Shares %_of Shares % of
held Holding held Holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
a. Columbia Trading Co. Ltd. 2,280,176 5.73% 2,280,176 5.73%
b. Kaveen Gupta 3,291,000 8.28% 3,291,000 8.28%
c. S.P.Gupta 9,259,790 23.30% 9,259,790 23.30%
d. Star Light Credit India Ltd. 4,257,500 10.71% 4,257 500 10.71%
e. Vipul Gupta 2,881,000 7.53% 2,991,000 7.53%
f. VLS Finance Limited* 9,554 824 24.14% 9,594,824 24 .14%

(* Under dispute)

i




Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

Name of the shareholder
Ananya Gupta & Kaveen Gupta
Mrs, Bakita Gupta
Mr. Kaveen Gupta
Kaveen Gupta (HUF)

Mrs. Monisha Gupta

Mr. 8.P, Gupta

Mrs. Sheel Gupta

5.P. Gupta (HUF)

Mr. 8.P. Gupta & Sheel Gupta
Mr. Vipul Gupta

Columbia Trading Co. Ltd.

As on date
No. of
Shares % of
heid Holding
530,000 1.34%
1,780,000 4.48%
3,291,000 8.28%
465,000 1.17%
1,415,000 3.56%
9,259,750 23.36%
1,708,150 4.25%
1,631,600 4.10%
522,600 1.32%
2,891,000 7.53%
2,280,176 5.73%

As on date
No. of
Shares % of
held Holding
530,000 1.34%
1,780,000 4.48%
3,291,000 8.28%
465,000 117%
1,415,000 3.56%
9 253,790 23.30%
1,708,150 4.29%
1,631,600 4.10%
522,600 1.32%
2,991,000 7.53%
2,280,178 5.73%




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...

(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

A. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance
Closing Balance {A)

B. Other Reserves
General Reserve

Opening Balance
Closing Balance (B)

C. Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Cpening Balance
Add :
Amount avaitable for Appropriations
Less: Appropriations

Closing Balance (C)

Total (A+B+C)

5. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Net Profit / (Net LLoss) for the current year

31/03/2024 31103/2023

Amount Amount
80,000.00 80,000.00
£¢,000.00 80,000.00
30.00 30.00
30.00 30.00
1,473,952 44 1,385,473.03
62,762.11 101,556.29
1,538,714.55 1,487,029.32
- 13,076.88
1,536,714.55 1,473,952 .44
1,616,744.55 1,5653,082.44

in line with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 on "Acounting for Taxes on income”
components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as on 1st April, 2023 and 31st March, 2024 are given as

01/04/2023 For the Year Reversing 31/03/2024

A. Deferred Tax Assets

a. Gratuity Provision 5,950.28 - 2.087.81 3,862.47

b. Prov. For Leave Encashment 1,240.54 151.714 563.47 828.77

c. Prov, For Bonus (Good work reward) §39.34 957.62 839.34 957.62

€. Unabsored Business Losses 7.,989.29 - 7,989.29 -
Total {A) 16,019.44 1,108.32 11,479.61 5,648.86
B. Deferred Tax Liabilities

a. Depreciation’ 174,188.46 - 10,684.95 163,503.52
Total {B) 174,188.46 - 10,684.95 163,503.52
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (B-A) 158,169.02 -1,109.32 ~-794 96 157,854 66

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is 2 reasonable certainty that sufficient

future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

6. OTHER L.LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Qthers

Security Deposit
a. Security Deposils

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
89,420.00 90,415.00
89,420.00 90,415.00




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}

{All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

7. LONG TERM PROVISIONS

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Provision for Employvee Benefits Amount Amount
a. Gratuity 21,215.49 12,829.62
b. Leave Encashment (Hotel) 5,376.37 3,722.48
26,5681.86 16,652.10
8. TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,520.22 -
(refer note 41)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than microe enterprises and 22.509.09 24,823.93
small enterprises (refer note below)
26,029.31 24,823.93
Particulars{Qutstanding from invoice date 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
{iy MSME
Less than 1 year 3,520.22 -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
Mare than 3 years - -
3,5620.22 -
(iiy Others
Less than 1 year 21,805.45 24 726.71
1-2 years 703.65 36.31
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years 80.81
22,509,09 24,823.93
(i) Disputed dues-MSME
l.ess than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
(iv) Disputed dues-Others
Less than 1 year - .
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - .
More than 3 years ~ -
26,029.31 24,823.93

(Lhis spece bay been Intentivnatly kit blank}




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

31/03/2024

Amount
a. Duties & Taxes Payables 7.667.52
h. Advance Sub-License fee 85,267.27
c. Other Payables 11,251.78
Total 104,186.57

10, SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
31/03/2024
Amount
A. Provision for Emplovee Benefits

a. Salary & Wages Payable 5,287.59
b. Good-work Reward payable 3,247 .46
¢. Provision for Gratuity 1,457.84
d. Provision for Leave Encashment 658.01
Total 10,860.90

(This space bas been intentionally foft blank)

31/03/2023
Amount
8,798.65
81,809.64
6,502.35
97,110.64

31/03/2023
Amount

5,5626.73
3,348.31
3,671.21
8§72.16
13,418.40




3.
[

*53ybu juadolenap se ‘fuedwod Aleipisqns au) “piy 039y UNg 0} pled 2:5m $21043 17 "SY UDIUM 10} DWON Ag 9suad)] e patojie 1ojd sjuasalsdas pue

(N "SY Ad} 1834 oy} Bupnp uoyeUiques ssauisng ybnoayy paanboe sem 19S5E paxy opN

1IN "sY :uonenieAss Jo JusULIRdUN O} BN 9SEI0U[ JO UORONPSL J0 812P 31} 0] Jusnbasqns sKeak oAl IS aY) 10] JaSSE JO SSEID Yoea 1o adsar ur spejaqg

YETOL'BEE L 10'94LC/EL OUD0EBED'L  LGBAYL  SEWSRCE  CZGPE G001 JO09/BTLPZ 22 Lbl G £8'148°04 LOOPEVPET
LO'BLLEIE L LTOBL'SOE'L  ZLOZTTIOL  LBOLST 9B0BSFE  9900ZEL0L 6B O0Y/CRT L6081 60'8EC 9T L9RIB'2IY'T (g+v) fe10L
000'9LEIGE  CO0'OLPLSE - - - - 000'gLy'15T - 0 Q00'9LF 152 (1) je101
00°GiF LY 0oLE LY - - - - 0081y L7 - 0091y iv watudo@rag 198104d 1O dIAD
000000l 00000 0LE SN - - - Q0'poo’ole - - 0000301 asuLoljuopueEl B
. (asean Japun) siessv ojgibuel ‘g
LOZOC'TEL' L LT0LLCLY TLOZZRIO0L 160G 95 0BG PE  OD00Z6GE0 . BB OBBSBL T 1600 60'8E2'9Z fgzesiiar’y (i moy
FOEYE S8GHYT 9zZLee E 18008 CERE - ZBUSL'S - 889857 £5195°¢ sucgepeisy) g sbunid jeosoag
iR Yichd 1804FT LOBRYOF - 0ee0e VE'SPTOr SG6LETY - - BRELE'TY $8U0SS3OTY 7§ siANCLIos
i 6
FANNE] 13°084€ 025082 - 9093t FPLBELL 86801 - 18792’ or'Tee’s wetudinby aoo
ZOLISTE €890 ¥E 82041 LBCLEE SELEsE SH'E6E'6 £L08L'68 L1608 £0'8LF'S LPpLLZE SaIIA D
OyeLL T 58PS 52 giiygier - LBFLEE 12921957 01081 '16Z - 98'06T'S 74668687 S9N B BIMILNG P
- - - - - - - {EIRWIWLCD
0214068 28°985 52 BEET8EYY - EEVEY'R 9G'88E 6Ty 9T 0LY'ELS - 000622 92091128 [#10H
usWINDI R IUBld 0
FASrALRY FE'O69 8 greEr's - B8GLT BYCLT'G 08581 Fl - - 08'5eL'vL fRIZISIOD)
LE¥98'C98 LL'E68 768 ZEOPE'esT - SO'CIBLL 9YTLVOE CYBSLLGLL - opEet's EOLERERLL 1810H
sBuipkng g
0S5 LLE'OLE  OSLLEOLL - - - - 08 LI L0 - - 0GLLL 0L puel e
(asean
F3pup) oK) s198sy gjqibue) v
£202 ¥Z0z rzozT £20Z ¥zZaz N leay £202
B ISLE BN 151E e isie  sjesodsig 1eah ay; ‘nady 1st ELIREIRS ayl ayl ‘Hdy 38
uo se uo se uo se uo 103 aB1eyo 1o sg uo se Buung Buung uo se
asueleg goueieg soueieg  juaunsnlpy uonerraidog aouejeg asuejeg {siesodsiq) SUOIPRY soue|eg
%0079 13N NOLLYIOEHd3a GALVINNNDIY H0018 550HD 135SV =0 NOILdI¥DS3a

INSWCINDE ® INV1d "ALYIHOEd 1)

{F31E)S oSIAIBLJ0 §50[un ' PUESAOY] Uf STUOILE 1)

(" "PIICD} PZOZ 'HOHYIN I5LE GIANT ¥VIA 3HL 404 SINIWILYLS “WIONYNI G21VaITOSNOD Ol SILON

QLI S121L0H HIVNAS



5] H SIUBLESBAL (0 ANEA UL GONNUILID 10; uo1siA0id sjelaifity ¢
BN IiN {40018 18N} AuRUGld JUBUASAALY JO BRRA D
06606850 LG FTVGOL aneA NI Ty
gL'8IZ0LG 0200268 ¥S03 Iy
SuBULSAALE DRIORD O junRoiE wwmomuvsd. Y
TSRIBLIISBAUI JUSIINS-E0U JC S[IE)JSP AMEBWLWENG
91892018 0L 010260 {o+y+®) B0 L
- G¥igleL 2, 18101
- 0¥ I8LEL N W N ¥ WN YN SIBUI0 | pung sequnpoddo JpaiD YUOoN ansg i
Spund [eninp Ul JEaitsaal]|
PEL'O9Z'0LY  BRELD6.8 A, jgel
SO0 DO000'GY 00°000°6F %001 %001 ped Aing  pRIOND  POY'GOLE  POS'GOL'E SISO pund puog steaodio 1igs (xx)
IS0 Y - PEAFO L %0 %00%L pred Agng  pojonD - 198°¢ SIS0 Umess - 1080 - pund Wbiueap wejoy (Aog
1800 Y - 00°000'62 %0 %001 pied Agng  pojony - 6.6'¢ SISO UHADID) LS 10BIIC DUng DINDET ¥BIOY (Ao
1800 Y - 00008 %0 %00t pred Agns  pajen - G9L'ETE SO ADIS) - UBld PR - pung abzueADpY Aunb3 xeioyM (1o
100 v “ 00°000'G: %0 %001 pred Agng  pRIony - LEG'CBT SIBUO QuEy - Ul 12810 - {Wua Loug) pung puog ¥eioy (W)
1800 - A0000's %0 %G0L ped Ay psjonp - GL0'808 SIBUD ymessy - e pung sbelueapy paouejeg xeioy (ol
180D 9C°9PLLL QLo L %001 %004 pred Ay pSIOND CHOVE £L0FZ SIBUD UImessy s pund puog aieiodsod weioN {00
1803 1 - 0G'000'51L %0 %O0L pred Ay psIonD - 006'952 SEhle] 3+ UBLe 108UC) - PUN WAL LIOUS [EIUSPRUG 11D (Xix)
1500 1 - 000008z %0 %O0L pled Apg  peiond - 9e9'L8 S0 AA0IS - UBL 153 - Pung pinbr [eRuepnig 10101
1800 1y - 00005 Y %0 %001 pred Agng  paond - £LE'¥EL SO 4 10ang - pung ebejueapy Anb3 euspnid DI
1800 1 - 00G°000°'S %0 %001 pd Mg palonDd - 1TG'v8 DU 3G - pung sbeueapy pasueleg [BiuUBpTId D10
eIV 06°004°58 0600458 %001 %001 pred Ajng  pRIOND  LE0'ZRLT  LE0'TRLE SIBYIO 9-d(3-8 pun4 puog sie:0diol [BNuapnid 1101
SO BLBEROY 6280002 %001 %00t pied An4  pRIOND  BPS'SHE’L  GG6'L6S SHBUIOD 3L% 1AiRwicd) © O-pung LOJRING LOUS DESH
1800 - 00°00G'0F %0 %0O0L pred Aing  pejen - 66¥'8 SBY0 UpiolD) - uBld 198IK3 - pund pinbr D4aH
1500 W 02718067 - %001 %G pied Aing pelonl  0S6'S - B4 uBld 1841 - PUR PINDIT DIAGH
1500 3y - 00'000'6 %0 %004 pied Aing  paonp - 9L8'65L SIRUID WIMOIS) - Ul 19RU1Q - PUN S0 D40H
1S00 Y $RGO0EE $EG00'CE %001 %001 pied Aing  pelonh 80P LT BOPLIL'L SO D-gG-pund puog sucdio] D4aH
100 Y 00°000'G) - %001 %0 pied ANz pAIOND  I1BSSLL - SIBUIO pund wiag Bous enin ueypuey
1IB003Y  SL/E0°6T CLLE0'62 %00 %004 pied Ajnd  pRIOND  FRFLGIT  EELODZ $3BYI0 SZ0Z-dED ¥Rt 1suD veypuey
BODW BUCEL VL POCHL09 %00} %00t pred ANy peiOnD  S6O'CSS'Y  LZR'CE0Y S30U410 W AMISIa)EG D-PUny puog siesodic] ueypueg
1001 10700008 LO00D 08 %004 %004 pred Aind  pBlonD  §29°209 GAR'L09 Si8UI0 19)d@- - LBl W2 g WOUS - pung puog ueypueg
SO0 857 1S0°LE £L800'vL %001 %001 pred Ajng paiond LAPELE 0B6E'6ZS S0 9 -puUnd W9 HouS siXy
BODW B PRSET - %001 %0 pred And - pRIORD g09'8LE - SIBUI0 Ymo:9) -purid JuBiuieag) epag elypy
IS00 W ¥GTTSE9 [ RAAAs] %004 %00 pied Aind  paonD BLE'Z69 62£'269 SBUIOD (-9- pung puog sieiodio) 3jung elag eAupy (1
1500 3 - 00000'G1L %0 %001 pied Aing  pajonD - £02'9.6 dQ - Wmoss - pund abenigsy 8y} ung epg eApy {11}
1S00 Y 00°0000G 00°000'G8 %001 %001 pied Ain4  patonD 0996’y OVO'ZOE'Y SO unz Xg1 siung egng ellpy (1
SpuUnd feniny ui JuaiulsaAll
£202 ¥20Z £20z ¥202 £20Z y20e 19410
YR ISIE  UMMBINISES  UDIBRA ISIE YOUBR IS|E Y2uep ISES UddBNISLE [ Aug eoadg
B0 5y Lo sy uo sy o sy Ua Sy Lo Sy Paf[oIuo] { AT
uonpeniep (ot pied Aiind  pajenbun [ 31e100SSY ON
jo siseg ('sy} junowy Suipjol Jo jusix3g /pled Aled [ pajony  SHUf) / S_UBYS 10 "ON | Azeipisqng SiRIRIIRd 15

Sluaunsaatl 110

SLNBILSIANI INTHENO-NON 7%

T0SIETS oS pAIoUI0 550jUI 2 PUESHGY] Ul SJUNGUIE jy)
("p3uoD) $Z0Z ‘HOUYI I51E RGNS UVIA IHL ¥O2 SINSINILVLS TVIONYNIZ GILVOITOSNOD OL S310KN
GILINIT STILOH HIVNNS



SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)
In fine with the method recommended by the Accounting Standard AS-22 an “Acounting for Taxes on
Income” components of deferred tax assets and iabilities as on 1st April, 2023 and 31st March, 2024 are
given as under:

01/04/2023 Forthe Year Reversing 31/03/2024

A. Deferred Tax Assets

a. Depreciation 54.32 - 12.89 51.43

b. Business Loss cff 56.08 . - 586.08 -

c. Unabsorbed Depreciation c/f 326,05 - - 326.06
Total (A} L 446.45 - 68.97 377.48

B. Deferred Tax Liabilities
a. Bepreciation - - -

Total (B) : - : 5

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A-B) 446 .45 - -68.97 377.48

Deferred tax asset has been recognised and carried forward since there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income shall be available against which the same can be realised.

14. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

J0312024 31/03/2023

Amount Amount

A. Capital Advances

Unsecured, considered good

a. Greater Noida Industrial Development Authority 550.00 550.00

Total (A) 550.00 550.00

B. Other Loans & Advances

Unsecured, considered goad

a. Income Tax Refundable 35,653.60 24,824,141

b. Cash Seized by L.T. Department 3,000.00 3,000.00

c. Other Advances 100,458.16 93,058.18

Total (B} 139,111.76 120,882.28

Total (A+C)  139,661.76 121,432.28
Details of loans & advances to directors or other officers, etc.
Other Officers of the Company

Total - -

(This sparce bas beent bntentionatly feft blani}




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}

(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

A. Security Deposits
Unsecured, considered good
a. Security deposit to service providers
b. Security deposit for let-out properties .
¢. Security deposit with Government Agencies for utilities
B. Others

a. Staff Advance
Total

16. INVENTORIES

A. Raw Materials & Components {Valued at cost)
Food
Beverage
Operating Equipmenis

B. Stock-in-trade (Valued at Lower of Cost & NRV)
Debt Funds

Total (A}

{This space bas been intenitanally Lt blank}

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
2,406.05 2,4086.05
3,120.00 3,120.00
7,227.31 7,227.31
160.00 175.00
12,913.38 12,828.36
31/03/2024 3110312023
Amount Amount
1,400.93 1,466.27
3,347.81 3,065.89
68,729.71 68,015.16
73,478.46 72.547.32
8,860.98 20,161.80
8,660.98 20,161.90
82,139.44 92,709.22




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{Alf amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

a) Undisputed trade receivables

- considered goed

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- which are credit impaired
b} Disputed trade receivables
- considered good

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- which are credit impaired

Below table represents the trade receivables ageing:

Particulars

{i} Undisputed trade receivables - considered good

Less than 6 months
& months - 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

(ii) Undisputed trade receivables - considered doubtful

Less than 6 months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

Meore than 3 years

31/03/2024
Amount

29,625.14

31/03/2023
Amount

31,7858.68

29,525.14

31,788.68

24,735.16
4,789.98

30,531.03
1,257.65

29,525.14

31,788.68

29,525.14

31,788.68

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company sither severally or

jointly with any other person.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2
(All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise sfated)

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. Cash and cash equivalents
a. Balances with banks
Current Account with Scheduled Banks 34,068.71 41,054 49
There are no Earmarked Balances, Margin Money, Security
against borrowings, Guaraniees and Other Commitments
included in the balances above (PY Nil} :

. Cheques, drafts on hand - -
¢. Cash on hand (including Imprest) 3,461.68 3,216.29
Total{A) 37,530.39 44,270.79

B. Other bank balances
a. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 521.37 -
months but within 12 months from balance sheet date

b. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months
but less than 12 months

Total(B)} 521.37 -

Total (A+B) 38,0561.75 44,270.79

19. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

unsecured, considered good 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
Other Loans & Advances
A. Advance License Fees (NDMC) (Prepaid) 17,172.40 17,172.40
8. Advance (Staff & Consultants) 800.00 815.00
C. Prepaid Expenses {Hotel} (Licence fee L3 & L5) 1442577 10,113.95
D. Advance for assets 25,465.30 25,465,306

57,863.47 53,566.65

Detaiis of loans & advances to directors or other officers, ete, : NiL (P.Y. NiL)

20. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. QOther Taxes Recoverabie
i. GST input 11,258.89 10,784.91

11,258.89 10,784.91

(Lhiy space hes been intentionadly keft blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand ¥, unless otherwise stated)

21. INCOME FROM QOPERATIONS

22,

23.

31/03/2024 31/03/12023
Amount Amount Amount Amount
A. Sale of Products
Debt Funds 12,893.77 4519352
B. Sale of Services
Facilities and Services Charges for Hotel Complex
Rooms 427 628.91 416,393.32
Food & Beverage
Food 80,225.34 76,741.73
Beverage 25,843.24 17,829.66
Banquet Fees 54868.43 5618.26
Other Operating Departments 13,882.49 10,099.07
Sub License Fees 108,239.09 661,407.49 99 414.69 626,086.73
Income from Operations {Gross) 674,301.26 671,290.25
Less: Excise Duty - -
Income from Operations (Net) 674,301.26 671,290.25
OTHER INCOME
A. interest from Bank Deposits 86.24 4214
B. Scrap sale 1.31 361.52
C. Income From Travel Desk 800.00 600.00
D. Guest Transport Charges & Tour 1,665.72 1,651.00
E. Capital Gain on Sale of Mutuat Funds 14,036.67 14,588.32
. Dividends received on share / Mutual Funds 493 2.30
G. Profit on Sale of PMS 1,183.15 963.51
H. Gain / (Loss) on Fereign Exchange Curr. Fluctuation 20.85 17.07
[. Miscellaneous Income 7.550.05 15,059.55
J. interest on Income fax refund 1,743.27 601.37
Total 26,902.20 33,886.77
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Materials Consumed
fnventery at the beginning of the year 4,532.16 4,345.09
Add : Purchases 48,934 65 38,730.45
53,466.81 43,075.54
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 4,748.75 4,532.16
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 48,718.06 38,543.38
Details of Materials Consumed
A. Food 43.901.16 12,295.28
B. Beverages 4,816.9C 1,433.75
C. Tahacoo 00 2.33
48,718.06 13,735.36

*

Cost of operating equipments consumed is directly
booked as an expense under its refevant expenditure
head.




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand ¥ unless otherwise stated)

24. PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
Debt Funds 688.69 14 353.70

658.69 14,353.70

-

25. (INCREASE) /| DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF TRADEDR GOODS

31/03/2024 31/03/2023 {Increase) /

Amount Amount Decrease

Inventories at the end of the year 31/03/2024
Debts Funds 8,660.98 20,161.90 11,500.82
8,660.98 20,161.90 11,500.92

Inventories at the beginning of the vear 310312023
Debts Funds 20,161.90 47,753.41 27.591.51
20,161.90 47 753.41 27,591.51%
Increase / (Decrease) in inventories -11,5003.92 -27,591 .51 16,090.59

(This sperce bas been intentinnally left bleniks)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)

{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

26. COST OF UTILITIES AND HOSPITALITY SERVICES

31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount
A. Laundry Cost 804.55 773.84
B. Health Ciub 193.59 129.47 |}
1,098.15 903.41 |
27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Amount Amount Amount Amount
A, Salaries, wages and bonus 77.,900.61 73,738.46
8. Directors Remuneration 6,000.00 5,400.00
C. Contributions to:
a. Provident Fund 5,823.90 4.161.47
b. ES! 436.13 890.31
¢, Other Funds 1,870.18 8,230.22 1,443.55 6,295.33
D. Gratuity Fund Contributions 7,300.04 3,621.59
E. Staff Welfare Expenses 3,983.36 4,250.63
F. Exgratia Paid 188.46 128.40
G. Security Services 4,589.56 3,757.66
H. Ceontract Labour 6,938.89 10,751.88
I.  Manpower Quisourced 20,278.00 -
135,419.14 107,943.95

(This space bas been intentionalfy kit blank)
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand F, unless otherwise stated)

28. OTHER EXPENSES

31/03/2024
Amount Amount

a. Power & Fuel 80,426 38
b, Rent 2.610.60
¢.  Repairs & Maintenance -

i. Plant & Machinery 34,083.59

i. Buildings 44,211.56

ii. Cthers 22.062.60 100,367.74
d. Advertising & Sales Promotion 1,981.55
e. AGM & Conference Charges 3.07
f.  Balance Written off 4,779.93
g. Banqguet Expenses 3,375.13
h. Cleaning Supply 1,616.39
i, Commission on Rooms 33,548.35
j.  Communication Cost 624.66
k. Credit Card Charges 2,021.17
| Director Traveling 10,789.52
m. Guest Supplies 11,756.25
n. Guest Supply & Relation Expenses 7,260.91
o. Guests Entertainment & Business Promotion 1,510.03
o.  Insurance 2,891.80
g. Internet Expense 888.80
r. Laundry & Dry Cleaning 226.12
s. Legal & Professional Fee 87.749.50
t.  Licence fee : 26.155.40
u.  Linen 838.46
v. Local Transportation & Vehicle Maintenance 3,630.73
w. Management Fees 110.69
X Membership Fees & Subscription 56.75
y. Misc Expenses 2,608.59
z. Music & Entertainment 420.00
aa. Payment to Auditors 524.65
ab. Postage/Courier/Telegram 36.53
ac. Printing & Stationery 2,507.81
ad. R.O.C. Fee 99.89
ae. Uniform 241 .45

Total 391,756.24
Details of Payment to Auditors
As Auditor:
- Audit Fee 385.50
~ Tax Audit Fee 139.15
Total 524.55

31/03/2023

Amount

15,590.81
2739416

34,768.27

Amount

67.556.15
2.496.00

77,753.24
1,155.42
13.64

2.853.11
1,319.14
31,724.41
551.27
1.998.32
8,243.66
9,418.83
8,433.56
766.82
262138
1,024 .20
193.49
85,378.30
26,690.33
980.24
2,357.04

40.55
3,382.23
420.00
52465
50.57
2,813.58
123.05
339.98

341,223.15

385.50
139.15

524.65




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)

(All amounts in thousand &, uynless otherwise stated)

29. FINANCE COST

3170312024
Amount
23.60
39.13
62.73

e r———————ee

a. Interest on Taxes
b. Bank Charges
Totatl

30. BEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

3110312024
Amount
34,580 96
34,590.96

Depreciation on Assets
Total

31. DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Year Ended March 31,

31/03/2023
Amount

59.30
59.30

31/03/2023
Amount
35,454.95

35,454.95

Year Ended March 31,

2024 2023
(a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the
company during the year 745,26 806.13
745.26 806.13
Yet to be Yet to be
{b} Amount spent during the year on: inCash paidincash InCash paid in cash
(i) On purposes other than (i) ahove
- Contribution for Medical Relief to poor
- Abhinandan Jan Kalyan Socisty 745.30 806.20
Total (A): 745,30 - 806.20 -
(c) Contribution paid to trust controlled by the related party
~NLA N.A - N.A -
Total (B): - - - -
Total (A+B): 745,300 - 806.20 -

{(Thiv spece bas been bitentionatly fefl blank)




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{Alf amounts in thousand ¥ unless otherwise stated)

32.

33.

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

3110312024 3110312023

Amount Amount
Total operations for the year
Profit / {loss) after tax 62,762.11 101,556.29
L.ess: Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of Basic EPS - 62,762.11 101,556.29
Net profit as above 62,762.11 101,656.29
Add : Dividends & dividend tax on other than equity shares - -
Add : Adjustments for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares - -
Net profit / (foss) for calculation of Diluted EPS 62,762.11 101.556.29
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS 39,750,000 39,750,000
Effect of dilution:
Convertible preference shares (numbers) - -
Convertible bonds (numbaers) -
Stock option granted under ESQP - -
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS 39,750,000 39,750,000
(a) Basic 1.679 2.55
(b} Diluted 1.579 2.55
MCA notification dated 24th March 2021 for amendments to Scheduie iii disclosures which are not
applicable:

(i) Title deed of immovable property not held in the name of compnay - No propertiy are held by the company.

(i) Details of Benami Property and its proceedings- Not applicable as there are no proceeadings which have been
initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

{Prohijbition} Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Willfull defaulter - 'The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.

{iv) Relationship with struck off companies - 'The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 and
do not have any outstanding balance as at the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

(v} Compiiance with number of layers of companies - ‘The Company has complied with the number of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

(vi} Compliance with approved scheme of arrangement - "The Company has not been approved any Scheme of
Arrangements by the Competent Autherity in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{vit) Details of crypto currency or Virtual currency - 'The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency

or Virtual Gurrency during the year. e
4 .3(.?-'\




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand T, unless otherwise stated)

34. Related Party Disclosure
Related Party disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-18 on ‘Related Party
Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india is given as under in respect of
related parties with whom transactions have taken place:

a) Related parties and their relationshp .
1)  Subsidiary Companies 1 Sun Aero Limited

2) Associate Companies / Firms : Pushpanjali Trexim Pvi. Limited
: Urban LifeStyie Pvt. Lid.
: Unigue LifeStyle Pvt. Ltd.

3) Key Management Personnel

-Mr, 8. P. Gupta : Chairman
- Mr. Kaveen Gupta : Whole Time Director
- Mr., Vipul Gupta : Whale Time Director

4) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

S.FP Gupta (HUF) : Mr. 8.P Gupta is Karta of HUF
Kaveen Gupta (HUF) : Mr. Kaveen Gupta is Karta of HUF
Vipul Gupia (HUF) 1 Mr. Vipul Gupta is Karta of HUF
Mrs. Monisha Gupta : Wife of Mr. Vipul Gupta
Rey
Associate  Managemen
Companies tPersonnel Relative of
Particulars {Rs.) {Rs.) KMP (Rs.} Totai
a) Rent -CY - 2,610.00 - 2,610.00
-PY 72.00 2,424.00 - 2,496.00
b) Directors’ Remuneration -CY - 6,000.00 - 6,000.00
-PY - 5,400.00 - 5,400.00

Balance outstanding on March 31, 2024
Amount Payable ~-CY - - - -
-PY 21,538,163 - - 2153816

(This spave hay beesr intentionatly leji blank)

Vi




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

35. In terms of Schedule |il of the Companies Act, 2013 and notification number GSR 719{e), the company
had requested its various suppliers, who may be registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, to furnish the relevant registration certificate under that Act and confirmation
regards them being under the said category. From the date of receipt of confirmed details and information
from the said parties the ouistanding on account purchase made/services obtained from such suppliers
including the disputed amounts due to them, were ascertained and refiected in the financials as due to
Micro & Small Enterprises. The details in respect of the parties that couid be identified as Micro and Small
enterprises as per the MSMED Act on the basis of the information avaiiable with the management are given
helow:

31/03/2024 31/03/2623
Amount Amount
(/) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting vear.
-Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 3,520.22
-Interest due on above - -

(i) The amount of interest paid by the huyer in terms of section 16 of
the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amaounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting - -

(i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act 2008. - -

{ivy The amount of further interest remaining due and payable aven in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006, - .

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Amount Amount
() Contingent Liabilities
A. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts NH Nil
B. Guarantees Nit N
C. Bills of exchange discounted with banks Nl NH
. Tax demand disputed in appeals 146,651.40 145,651.40
£. Others () 8,00,00.00 (") 8,00,00.00 (")
(™) The amount represents forfeitable security deposit, which
is not dug as per the legal opinion received by the
Company. OMF and Enf{c) have been fied in the
matter. Refer to Note No. 40.
(it Commitments
A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 5,600.00 1,500.00
capital accounts and not provided for
B. Uncaiied liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil

C. Other commitments Nil Nil
A




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

37. Gratuity & Other Post-employment Benefits
The Company does not have a defined benefit gratuity plan. However, every employee who has
completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on departure at 15 days' salary (last drawn basic
salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months on projected unit

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss
account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

. Gratuity
31/03/2024 31/03/20623
1. Change in present value of obligation Amount Amount
a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the pericd 16,500.83 14,586.70
b) Acqguisition adjustment - -
c) Interest cost 1,231.93 1,042 21
d) Past service cost - -
e} Current service cost 1,457 84 1.411.00

f} Curtailment cost/ (Credit) - -
g) Settelement cost / (Credit) - -

h) Benefit paid -1,127.563 -
i) Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation 4,610.27 -539.08
J) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 22,673.33 16,500.83

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquisition adjustment -

c} Expected return on plan assets - .
d) Contribution - -
e) Benefits paid - -
f) Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets - -
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -

3. Fair value of plan assets

a) Fair value of pian assets at the beginning of the period - -
b) Acquistion adjustment - -
¢) Actual return on plan assets - -
d) Contributions -

e} Benefits paid - -
f) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
g) Funded status -22.673.33 -16,500.83
h) Excess of actuai over estimated return on plan assets - -

4. Actuarial gain / losses recoqgnized

a) Actuarial gain / {loss) for the period- obligation -4.610.27 538.08
b} Actuarial (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets - -
c) Total (gain) / loss for the period 4,610.27 -539.08
d} Actuarial (gain) / loss recegnized in the period 4.610.27 -539.08
e} Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period - -
fy Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-Loss/(Gain 745.93 -201.55

5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis
a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 22.673.33 16,500.83
b) Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Period - -
¢} Funded status / Difference PR I -22.673.33 -16,500.83




d) Excess of actual over estimated -
e) Unrecognized actuarial {gains) / losses -
f) Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet -22.673.33

6. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Current service cost 1,457 84
b) Past service cost -
c) Interest cost 1,231.93
d) Expected return on ptan assets -
e) Curtailment cost/ (Credit) . -
fy Setllement cost / (credit) -
9) Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period 461027
h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 7.300.04

7. Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss
a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 22,673.33
b) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 16,500.83
c) Benefit paid -
d} Actual return on plan assets -
e} Acguisition adjustment -
f} Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 7,300.04

8. Amount for the current period

a) Present vaiue of obligation as at the end of the period 22673.33
b) Fair value of plan assets -

¢} Surplus / {Deficit) -22,673.33
d) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain -4,610.27

e) Experience adjustment on plan assets (loss) / gain -

9. Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet
a} Opening net liability 15,111.19
b} Expense as above 7,300.04
c) Benefits paid -
d) Actual return on plan assets -
e) Acquisition adjustment -
f) Closing net liability 22,411.23

10. Major categories of plan assets (as percentaae of total plan assets)
a) Government of India Securities -
b} State Government Securities -
c} High quality corporate bonds -
d) Equity shares of listed companies -
e) Property -
) Special deposiie scheme -
g) Funds managed by insurer -
h) Bank balance (For Gratuity) -

-18,506.83

1.411.00

1,042.21

-538.08
1.914.13

16,500.83
14,586.70

1.914.13

16,500.83
-16,500.83
539.08

13,197.06
1,914.13

15,111.19

Total -

11. The principal assumption used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are

shown below:

31/03/2024
Amount
a} Discount rate 7.15
b} Rate of return on Pian Assets o) -
c) Salary Escalation e 6%

2% PLAL for FY 2022-23 and 4% P.A. thereafter

31/03/2023
Amount
7.45

4%




. lLeave Encashment

a) Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period
b} Acquisition adjustment

¢) Interest cost

d) Past service cost

g) Current service cost

f) Curtailment cost / {Credit)

g) Settelement cost / (Credit)

h) Benefit paid

i) Actuarial {(gain) / Loss on obligation

j) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period

2. Changes in fair value of plan assets
a) Fair vatue of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b}y Acquisition adjustment
¢) Expected return on plan assets
d} Contribution
e) Benefits paid
f} Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

3. Fairvalue of plan assets
a) Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
b} Acquistion adjustment
¢) Actual return on plan assets
d) Contributions
e} Benefits paid
) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period
g) Funded status
h) Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets

4. Actuarial gain / losses recognized
a} Actuarial gain / (loss) for the period- obligation
b) Actuarial (gain) / loss for the period- plan assets
c) Total (gain) / loss for the period
d) Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period
e) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses at the end of the period
f) Experience Adjustment on Present Value of Obligation-L.oss/(Gain

5. The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and related analysis

a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
b) Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the Perjod

¢) Funded status / Difference

d) Excess of actual over estimated

e) Unrecognized actuarial (gains) / losses

f) Net assets / (liability) recognized in balance sheet

6. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a) Current service cost 14y
b) Past service cost
¢) Interest cost

31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Amount Amount
4. 594 .64 4.150.91
343.03 296.58
658.01 584 44

-530.44 -
969.14 -437.29
65,034.38 4 594 84
-6,034.38 -4,594.64
968 .14 -437 .29
869.14 -437.29
969.14 -437.29
-172.10 -337 .14
6,034.38 4 594 .64
-6,034.38 -4,594 64
5,034.38 4 594 64
658.01 584 44
343.03 296.58




10.

11.

d) Expected retumn on plan assets - -
e} Curailment cost / (Credit) _ - -
f}y Settlement cost/ (credit) - -
g) Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the period 969,14 -437.29

h) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,870.18 44373

Reconciliation statement of epenses in the statement of profit & loss

a} Present value of obligation as at the end of the pericd §,034.38 4,594 .64
b} Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 4,584 .64 4,150.91
¢) Benefit paid - -530.44 -
d) Actual return on plan assets -

e) Acquisition adjustment - -
f) Expenses recognized in the statement of profit & losses 1,8670.18 44373
Amount for the current period

a) Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 6,034.38 4,594 .64
b) Fair value of plan assetsas at the end of the period - -
¢} Surplus / (Deficit) -65,034.38 -4,594 64
d) Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (loss) / gain {969,140) 437.29
e) Experience adjustment on plan assets {loss) / gain - -
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet

a) Opening net Hability 4,594.64 4,150.91
b) Expense as above 1,970.18 443,73
¢) Benefits paid -530.44 -
d) Actual return on plan assets -

e} Acquisition adjustment - -
fy Closing net liahility 6,034.38 4,594 64

Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)

a) Government of India Securities - -
b) State Government Securities - -
c} High quality corporate bonds - -
d) Equity shares of listed companies - -
e) Property - -
f) Special deposite scheme - -
g) Funds managed by insurer - -
h) Bank balance (For Gratuity) - -

The principal assumption used in determining leave encashment obligation for the Company's
plans are shown below:

34/03/2024 31/03/2023

Amount Amount
a) Discount rate 7.15 7.55
b) Rate of return on Plan Assets - -
¢) Saiary Escalation 6% 4%+

*-- 2% P.A, for FY 2022-23 and 4% P A. thereafter

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market. Previous year figures have not been given since those are not fully available.

s




SUNAIR HOTELS LRMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...)
{All amounts in thousand & unless otherwise stated)

38. Segment Reporting
The business segments of the Company have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard AS-17 on "Segment

Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, taking into account the organisational structure and
different risk and return of these segments. The Company’s reportable business segments consists of the following;

a) Hotel Business

h) Commercial Centre

¢) Portfolio Management

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the foliowing additional policies for segment
reporting : ’

-

a) Revenue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating business
activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to enterprise as a whole that cannot be allocated to
a segment on reasonable basis, have been disclosed separately under the column “unallccabie™

b} Seament assets and liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Assets and Habilities that
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed under the column “unallocable”.

Hotel Commercial Portfolio Total

Particulars Business Business Management Amount
Segment Revenue
- Revenue including other income 578,922.76 108,239.09 14,041.61 701,203.486
Net Sales / Income from Qperations (A) 578,922.76 108,239.09 14,041.61 701,203.48
Segment Expenses
Allocable Expenses
-Consumption of Stores, Provisions

& Beverages and Purchase of Mutual Funds 62,015.81 - - 62,015.81
-Employee benefit expenses 135,418.14 - - 13541814
-Operating / Administration Expenses 391,756.24 - - 391,756.24
-Finance Cost 62.73 - - 62.73
-Expenditure on CSR Activity 745.30 - - 745.30

{B) 589,989.22 - - _ 589,999.22

Segment Resuit (A-8) -11,076.48 108,239.09 14,G041.61 111,204.24
Less . Depreciation 34,580.96
Profit before Taxation 76,613.28
Less : Tax kExpense for the year 13,851.18
Profit after Taxation 62,762.11
Segment Assets (including Misc.

expenditure and debit balance of

Profit & Loss Alc) 1,347,381.32 1,081 606.53 - 2,428,987 .85
Segment Liabilities {including long

term Habilities) 328,613.30 86,130.00 - 414,743.30
Total Carrying Amount of fixed assets 1,365,188.27 - - 1.365,186.27
Total Depreciation on fixed assets 34,374.68 215.98 - 34.590.96

The business segments of the Company viz., hotel business and commercial centre are hoth iocated at one
geographical piace only and accordingly the geographical segment is not applicable to the company.

LY
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SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 {Contd...}
(All amounts in thousand & _unless otherwise stated)

39, Ratio
As at As at %
S. No Particulars Measures | 31 March | 31 March Vari;nce Reason for variance
2024 2023

1 [Current Ratio Times 1.55 1.72 -10%|The ratio is decreased due to increase in
Liability,

2 |Debt-Equity Ratic Times NLA. NA, N.A N.A.

3 {Debt service! Times MNLA. NA. NLA. N.A,

coverage ratio

4 Return on equity ratic (Percentage 0.03 0.05 -40%|The ratio has decreased during the current
year due to decrease in the profit earned
during the year as compared to previous

5 |Inventory turnover|Times 0.66 0.37 53%|This ratio has increased due to decrease in

ratio the cost of goods sold during the vear. This
decrease is in consistent with the decrease
in the revenue earmned during the year.

6 |Trade receivabies|Times 22.00 27.97 -21%iThe ratio has decreased during the current

turnover ratio year due to increase in the trade receivables
during the year as compared to previous
year.

7 iTrade payables|Times 1.82 1.94 “1%|The ratic has decreased due to low

turnover ratio purchases made in credit by the Company in
the current year. This increase in purchases
in consistent with the increase in revenue.

8 [Net capital turnover|[Times 8.65 6.87 26%|The ratio has increased during the current

ratio year due to increase in the turnover during
the year as campared to previous year.

9 |Net profit ratio Percentage 0.08 0.15 -38%|The ratio has decreased during the current
year due to decrease In the profit earmed
during the year as compared to previous
year.

10 iReturn on  capitaliPercentage 0.03 0.08 -46% | This ratic has decreased due to decrease in

employed the profits earned by the company in the
current year.

11 |Return on investment |Percentage G% 0% NAINA

S. No Ratios Numerator Denominator

1 |Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities

2 |Debt-equity ratic Total debt = long term borrowings +  [Shareholder's equity .

3 Debt service|Earning for debt service = Net profit| Debt service = interest payments + principal repayments

coverage ratio before {axes + non-cash operating

4 Return on equity ratio |Net profits after taxes — preference|Average shareholder's equity

dividend (if any)

5 fnventory turnoveriCost of goods sold Average inventory = (Opening + closing balance / 2)

ratio

5 Trade receivables|Net credit sales Average accounts receivables

turnover ratio

7 Trade payables|Net credit purchases Average trade payables

furncver ratio

8 Net capital furnover|{Net sales Average working capital (Le. total current assels fess

ratio total current liabilities)

9 |Net prefit ratio Net profit Net sales

10 Return on  capitaliEarning before interest and taxes{Capital employed = Tangible net worth + total debt +

employed (EBIT) deferred tax liability

11 Return on investment {Income generated from investments | Time weighted average investments

a7y




SUNAIR HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 (Cor
(All amounts in thousand &, unless otherwise stated)

40.

Applications filed by the Company and VLS Finance Ltd (a registered sharehoider of the Company) u's
34 of the Arbitration and Reconciliation Act 1996, challenging the Award therein given are pending for
disposal since the year 2015 by the Hor'ble Dethi High Court as on the date of signing of these annual
financial statements. Similarly, the second petition for enforcement of the said Award filed by VLS
Finance Ltd in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court is alse pending adjudication as an undertaking has been
given by VLS Finance Ltd not to press the execution till the original cross petition are decided. The earlier
such petition filed by VLS Finance Ltd was dismissed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court on 16/08/2017.
The award contained directions to the Company / its directors to refund to VLS Finance Ltd the forfaited
security deposit of Rs. 8 Crores in terms of the MOU dated 11/03/1995 with due interest. However. as
per legal opinion received by the Company no such amount is refundable particularly when the Hor'ble
Company Law Board vide its order dated 04/09/2013 has dismissed the Company Petition of VLS
Finance Ltd and decided in favour of the Company.

SFIO has filed a petition u/s 241(2) along with sections 246 and 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 before
the Hon'ble NCLT against the Company and others which is aiso pending adjudication. Similarly, SFIO
has aiso filed a complaint on the same subject as is before the Hon'bie NCLT in the court of the learned
ASJ (Special Court) Dwarka New Delhi, also still pending as on this date.

In the FIRs filed by the State on the complaints of VLS Finance Lid. against the Company and others,
charges have been framed by the learned Trial Court where proceedings including revisions are stil:
pending at different stages.

41. Sundry Debtors / Creditors, if any, are not reconciled due to non-receipt of corresponding statements of
account from them. Necessary adjustments, if any, in the books of account will be made at the time of
reconciliation of the same.

42. EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRA-ORDINARY [TEMS
No exceptional or extra-ordinary iterns of revenue nature occurred during the year (PY Nil). Hence no
disciosure of the same has been made in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

43. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

44, PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous figures have been regrouped / recast wherever considered necessary.
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